
  
 

APOPKA CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
September 20, 2017 7:00 PM 

APOPKA CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

Agendas are subject to amendment through 

5:00pm on the day prior to City Council Meetings 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
INVOCATION - Pastor Steve Coleman with FaithWorks Church 
PLEDGE 
 
AGENDA REVIEW: 
Proclamations: 
1. Red Ribbon Week Proclamation presented to Orlando Devil Dog Young Marines.       Mayor Kilsheimer 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT; STAFF RECOGNITION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
Public Comment Period:  
The Public Comment Period is for City-related issues that may or may not be on today’s Agenda. If you are here for a matter that 
requires a public hearing, please wait for that item to come up on the agenda. If you wish to address the Council, you must fill out an 
Intent to Speak form and provide it to the City Clerk prior to the start of the meeting. If you wish to speak during the Public Comment 
Period, please fill out a green-colored Intent-to-Speak form. If you wish to speak on a matter that requires a public hearing, please fill 
out a white-colored Intent-to-Speak form. Speaker forms may be completed up to 48 hours in advance of the Council meeting. Each 
speaker  will  have  four minutes to  give  remarks,  regardless  of  the  number  of  items  addressed.  Please refer to Resolution No. 
2016-16 for further information regarding our Public Participation Policy & Procedures for addressing the City Council. 
 
CONSENT (Action Item) 
1. Authorize an extension of purchase on the behalf of Royal Oak Homes, LLC for the Marshall Lake site.   
 
BUSINESS (Action Item) 
1. Approve the purchase of two (2) pumps for the Northwest Recreation Center Irrigation Pump Station. Jay Davoll 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTION (Action Item) 
1. Ordinance No. 2565 – Second Reading – Large Scale – Future Land Use Amendment – Amerigo Farms – Legislative David Moon 
2. Ordinance No. 2585 – Second Reading – Admin. Rezoning – Chandler – Quasi-Judicial David Moon 
3. Ordinance No. 2586 – Second Reading – Admin. Rezoning – Sanders – Quasi-Judicial  David Moon 
4. Ordinance No. 2587 – Second Reading – Admin. Rezoning – Jolly Products & Services – Quasi-Judicial David Moon 
5. Ordinance No. 2588 – Second Reading – Admin. Rezoning – Edgel LLC. – Quasi-Judicial David Moon  
6. Ordinance No. 2589 – Second Reading – Admin. Rezoning – Halm – Quasi-Judicial David Moon  
7. Ordinance No. 2592 – Second Reading – Change of Zoning – Gates & Oak Royal Properties LLC. – Quasi-Judicial David Moon 
8. Ordinance No. 2593 – Second Reading – Annex. – 425 & 431 W Station Street – Legislative David Moon 
9. Ordinance No. 2594 – Second Reading – Annex. – 251 W Lester Road – Legislative  David Moon 
10. Ordinance No. 2595 – Second Reading – Annex. – 213 W. Lester Road & 2122 Rock Springs Road - Legislative David Moon 
11. Ordinance No. 2596 – Second Reading – Annex. – 3001 W. Kelly Park Road – Legislative David Moon 
12. Ordinance No. 2597 – Second Reading – Annex. – 3013 W. Kelly Park Road – Legislative David Moon  
13. Ordinance No. 2598 – Second Reading – Annex. – 5012 Plymouth Sorrento Road – Legislative David Moon 
14. Ordinance No. 2590 – First Reading – Large Scale – Future Land Use Amendment – Horne Trust – Legislative David Moon 
15. Ordinance No. 2599 – First Reading – Large Scale – Future Land Use Amendment – Sabbath Grace – Legislative David Moon 
16. Resolution No. 2017-18 - Granting a roll-off container collection franchise agreement to Russo and Sons, LLC.  Jay Davoll 
 
CITY COUNCIL REPORTS 
 
MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
NOT REQUIRING ACTION 
1. Appreciation letter from Florida Hospital to the Fire & Police Departments.   
2. Appreciation email from an Apopka resident for the Public Services, Waste Management Division.   
 
ADJOURNMENT 

1



  
 

 
MEETINGS AND UPCOMING EVENTS 

DATE TIME EVENT 

September 25, 2017 10:00am – 11:00am Lake Apopka Natural Gas District Board Meeting: Winter Garden 

September 27, 2017 4:30pm –  Community Redevelopment Agency Budget Adoption 

September 27, 2017 5:01pm –  Budget Second Reading & Adoption 

October 4, 2017 1:30pm –  Council Meeting 

October 5, 2017 5:30pm – 9:00pm Food Truck Round Up 

October 9, 2017 6:30pm –  CONA Meeting – UCF Apopka Business Incubator 

October 10, 2017 5:30pm –  Planning Commission Meeting 

October 18, 2017 7:00pm –  Council Meeting 

October 23, 2017 10:00am – 11:00am Lake Apopka Natural Gas District Board Meeting: Winter Garden 

October 28, 2017 5:00pm – 9:00pm  Hometown Halloween in the Park – Kit Land Nelson Park 

 
Individuals with disabilities needing assistance to participate in any of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk at least two (2) working days in 
advance of the meeting date and time at (407) 703-1704.  F.S. 286.0105 If a person decides to appeal any decision or recommendation made by 
Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, he will need record of the proceedings, and that for such purposes he may need to ensure 
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
 
Any opening invocation that is offered before the official start of the Council meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private person, to and for the 
benefit of the Council.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the City Council or 
the city staff, and the City is not allowed by law to endorse the religious or non-religious beliefs or views of such speaker.  Persons in attendance at the 
City Council meeting are invited to stand during the opening ceremony. However, such invitation shall not be construed as a demand, order, or any other 
type of command.  No person in attendance at the meeting shall be required to participate in any opening invocation that is offered or to participate in the 
Pledge of Allegiance.  You may remain seated within the City Council Chambers or exit the City Council Chambers and return upon completion of the 
opening invocation and/or Pledge of Allegiance if you do not wish to participate in or witness the opening invocation and/or the recitation of the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
  

2



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Authorize an extension of purchase on the behalf of Royal Oak Homes, LLC for the Marshall Lake site.   
  

3



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

X CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: September 20, 2017 

 PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Project Map 

 OTHER: BUSINESS     

     
  

SUBJECT:  EXTENSION OF DUE DILIGENCE TIME FOR THE PURCHASE OF THE 

MARSHALL LAKE 103.3 ACRE SITE BY ROYAL OAK HOMES, LLC  

   

REQUEST:  REQUEST AN EXTENSION FOR THE PURCHASE OF THE MARSHALL 

LAKE  103.3 ACRE SITE UNTIL DECEMBER 31, 2017 
  
SUMMARY: 

On May 3, 2017 the City Council approved the bid offer from Royal Oak Homes, LLC for the purchase of 

the Marshall Lake site located west of SR 451.  The approval included a due diligence time period of five 

(5) months from the date of the bid submittal which was April 28, 2017 (or September 28, 2017).  The 

approval also included one 30 day extension to October 28, 2017 with City approval. 

 

The applicant and staff have both been working diligently toward the access needed for the project off 

Johns Road which the applicant included additional land for the project south of Johns Road.  Verification 

of the rights-of-way and processing the land use and zoning needed for the entire project have taken 

longer than expected. 

 

The applicant is requesting an extension to December 31, 2017 to complete the access, land use and 

zoning needed for the project. 

 

Purchase price bid was for $3,200,000 and a 1% deposit of $32,000 was previously submitted.  Balance 

due is $3,168,000. 

 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:   

N/A 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

Staff recommends approval of the extension for purchase to December 31, 2017 provided all paperwork 

and payment for the remainder of the full purchase price be completed on or before December 31, 2017. 

 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief  

4



STREET A

ST
R

EE
T 

D

ST
R

EE
T 

D

STREET C

ST
R

EE
T 

C
ST

R
EE

T 
C

STREET B

ST
R

EE
T 

C

STREET C

ST
RE

ET
 C

ST
R

EE
T 

A

ST
R

EE
T 

F

ST
R

EE
T 

G

ST
R

EE
T 

A

STREET E

STREET E

9/7/17

A
P

P
IA

N
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

 L
L

C
.

ST
A

T
E

 O
F

 F
L

O
R

ID
A

 C
E

R
T

IF
IC

A
T

E
 O

F
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 N
O

. 3
21

74

5



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Approve the purchase of two (2) pumps for the Northwest Recreation Center Irrigation Pump Station. Jay Davoll 
  

6



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  
 

       CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: September 20, 2017 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Public Services 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       N/A 

  X  OTHER:  Business 

  
 

SUBJECT:  NORTHWEST RECREATION CENTER IRRIGATION PUMPS PURCHASE 

 

Request: AWARD A PURCHASE CONTRACT TO BARNEY’S PUMPS, INC. IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $110,000 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

On July 5, 2017, the City Council approved $258,500 for the purchase and installation of a redundant 

reclaimed water irrigation pump station for the Northwest Recreation Facility.  Public Services received 

sealed bids from three (3) companies for the purchase of two (2) vertical turbine high service pumps for 

this irrigation pump station.  The bids are as follows: 

 

Company Bid Amount 

Barney’s Pumps, Inc. $110,000 

Hudson Pump & Equipment $137,530 

A.C. Schultes $152,500 

 

 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Fund 403 – Reclaimed Water Impact Fees 

    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Award a purchase contract to Barney’s Pumps, LLC, in the amount of $110,000 

 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

 

7



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Ordinance No. 2565 – Second Reading – Large Scale – Future Land Use Amendment – Amerigo Farms – Legislative 
 David Moon 

  

8



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: September 20, 2017 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 

X OTHER: Ordinance   Vicinity Map 

    Future Land Use Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Uses Map 

    Existing Uses Map 

    Ordinance No. 2565 
  
SUBJECT:   ORDINANCE NO. 2565 - COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT - LARGE SCALE – FUTURE 

LAND USE AMENDMENT – AMERIGO FARMS, INC. – ADOPTION HEARING 

 

REQUEST: ORDINANCE NO. 2565 - SECOND READING - COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT - LARGE 
SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT –  AMERIGO FARMS, INC., FROM MIXED USE TO 
AGRICULTURE (0-1 DU/5 AC); (PARCEL ID # 19-20-28-0000-00-013) 

  
 
OWNER: Amerigo Farms, Inc. 
 
APPLICANT: Jonathan Huels, Esquire, - Lowndes, Drosdick, Doster, Kantor & Reid 
 
LOCATION: 3477 Plymouth Sorrento Road 
 
EXISTING USE: Vacant 
 
CURRENT ZONING: Mixed-CC (Mixed Use – Community Center) 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Agricultural and\ or single-family residence (1 un\5 ac) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: A zoning application will be processed during or within six months of the FLUM 

adoption hearing. 
 
TRACT SIZE:   32.33 +/- acres  
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 242 units 
    PROPOSED: 6 single-family units 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 
N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

 
9



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
AMERIGO FARMS, INC. – LARGE SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 2 

 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The subject parcels were annexed into the City of Apopka on December 16, 
1992. The applicant\property owner requests a future land use designation of Agriculture to accommodate 
container nurseries.  The proposed amendment compatible with surrounding future land use designations and 
adjacent uses.  As a “Large-Scale” Future Land use Amendment (i.e., ten or more acres), this application will be 
transferred to State agencies for consistency review with State policies. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed use of the property for future agricultural 
production or single-family residential is compatible with the character of the surrounding area and is consistent 
with the Agriculture land use designation.  City planning staff supports the FLUM amendment given the 
consistency with the Comprehensive Plan policies listed below and the intent of the proposed development as a 
single-family residential community see (Land Use Analysis below).   Site development cannot exceed the 
intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies.  
 
Future Land Use Element 

 
1. Policy 3.2 Development and redevelopment shall be integrated with the adjacent land uses through: (1) 

the creation of like uses; or (2) creation of complementary uses; or (3) mitigation of adverse impacts. 
 
The proposed Agriculture future land use designation for the subject property is compatible with the 
adjacent “County” Rural future land use designations and consistent with the existing uses within the 
surrounding area.  Therefore, the proposed future land use designation is consistent with Policy 3.2. 

 
2. Policy 3.5 Residential development north of Ponkan Road and west of Rock Springs Road (Park Avenue) 

will be restricted to no more than two dwelling units per acre, unless otherwise authorized through the 
adopted Wekiva Parkway Interchange Plan. 

   
 The subject property is located north of Ponkan Road and west of Rock Springs Road. This site is not 

within the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan area; the request for an Agriculture future land use 
designation, which allows for a maximum density of one dwelling units per five acres is consistent with 
this policy.  

 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:    The proposed future land use designation will permit a maximum density 
of residential units that is considered de minimus and, therefore, a school capacity determination is not required.  
Potential school children generated from any home construction at the subject site will decrease. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any 
public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on March 10, 2017. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
April 11, 2017 – Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 
May 3, 2017 – City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading & Transmittal 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
March 24, 2017 – Public Notice and Notification 
August 25, 2017– Ordinance Heading & Public Notice ¼ Page Ad w/Map 

  

10



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
AMERIGO FARMS, INC. – LARGE SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 3 

 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval to transmit a change in Future Land Use from 

Mixed Use to Agriculture (0-1 du/5 ac) for the property owned by Amerigo Farms, Inc, subject to the information 

and findings in the staff report. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its regularly scheduled meeting on April 11, 2017, voted unanimously to 

recommend transmittal of the proposed Future Land Use map amendment from Mixed Use to Agriculture (0-1 

du/5 ac) subject to the information and findings in the staff report for property owned by Amerigo Farms, Inc. 

 

The City Council, at its May 3, 2017 meeting, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2565; and authorized 

transmittal to the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity. 

 

The City Council, at its September 6, 2017 meeting, unanimously voted to continue to a date certain of September 

20, 2017. 

 

City Council 2nd Reading:  Adopt Ordinance 2565. 

 

Note: This item is considered legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and 

made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

11



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
AMERIGO FARMS, INC. – LARGE SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 4 

 

LAND USE REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) A-1 Single-family residences & vacant 

East (City) Mixed Use Mixed-CC Single-family residence 

South (County) Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) P-D  Single-family residences 

West (County) Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) A-1 Single-family residence 

 
The property has access from the west to Plymouth Sorrento Road. 
 
II. LAND USE ANALYSIS 
 
The subject property is located within an area predominated by single-family residences and rural character, 
including container nurseries.  
 
“County” Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) abuts the subject property to the north, south and west.  The property to the east 
has a “City” Mixed Use future land use and zoning, but is used currently as a single-family residence.  
 
Therefore, the proposed Agriculture future land use designation is consistent with the general future land use 
character and uses within the surrounding area.  
 
 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 
 Area of Critical State Concern: No 
 DRI / FQD: No 
 
 JPA: The City of Apopka and Orange County entered into a Joint Planning Area (JPA) agreement on 
October 26, 2004.  The subject property is located within the “Northern Tier” of the JPA.   Orange County 
government has been notified of the proposed FLUM amendment and has not objected.     
 
 Transportation:  Road access to the site from Plymouth Sorrento Road to the east. 
 
 Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act: The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the adopted 
Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  The proposed amendment is consistent with the adopted 
mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment has been reviewed against 
the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater resources.  The City of Apopka's adopted 
Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and storm water run-off through the following policies: 

 
 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 
 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 
 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 
Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of Environmental 

Protection shows that there are no karst features on this property.   
 
 Analysis of the character of the Property:  The current use of the properties are vacant.  The dominant soil, 
Candler Fine Sand, has a 0-5 percent slope. 
  

12



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
AMERIGO FARMS, INC. – LARGE SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 5 

 
 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: These properties were 
annexed into the City on December 16, 1992. Based on the adoption of the JPA, the size of the property, and the 
proposed land use change, the amendment will increase the population if developed. 
  
CALCULATIONS: 
ADOPTED:  242 x 2.659 p/h = 643 persons 
PROPOSED:  6 x 2.659 p/h = 15 persons  
 
 Housing Needs: This amendment is to change the future land use to a future land use designation that 
permits residential uses, and will increase the number of available housing units in the City of Apopka. 
 
 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: A habitat study is required for 
developments greater than ten (10) acres in size.  At the time the Master Site Plan or Preliminary Development 
Plan is submitted to the City, the development applicant must conduct a species survey and submit a habitat 
management plan if any threatened or endangered species are identified within the project site. 
 
 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to Chapter 
3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 Sanitary Sewer Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None ;  81 GPCD; 81 GPD 
 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka 
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:    784   GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:   9,016   GPD 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  81 GPD/Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  81 GPD/Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: None 
 

 Potable Water Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None ;  177 GPCD;  
 177 GPD 

 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: 
 City of Apopka 
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:     840   GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:   9,660   GPD 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  177 GPCD 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  177 GPCD 13



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
AMERIGO FARMS, INC. – LARGE SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 6 

 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: None 
 

8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area: Yes   
 

 Solid Waste 
 

1. Facilities serving the site:  City of Apopka 
 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: 
City of Apopka 
 

3. Projected LOS under existing designation:  44  lbs./person/day 
 

4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  488  lbs./person/day 
 

5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: None 
 
 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 

development approval. 
 

 Infrastructure Information 
 
 Water treatment plant permit number: CUP No. 3217 
 
 Permitting agency: St. John's River Water Management District 
 
 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  21,981 mil. GPD 
 
 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33,696 mil. GPD 
 
 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 
 
 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property: Yes 
 

 Drainage Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site:    None            
 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation: 100 year - 24 hour design storm event.  
 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 100 year - 24 hour design storm event.  
 

4. Improvement/expansion: On-site retention/detention pond  
 
 Recreation 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System; 3 AC/1000 capita 
 

2. Projected facility under existing designation:  0.033  AC 
 

3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  0.366    AC 
 

4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 
None.     
 

This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of development 
approval. 14



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
AMERIGO FARMS, INC. – LARGE SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 7 

 
 

Amerigo Farms, Inc. 
Property Owner 
32.33 +/- Acres 

Proposed Large Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 
From: Mixed Use 

To: Agriculture (0-1 du/5 ac) 
Proposed Change of Zoning: 

From: Mixed-CC 
To: AG (Agriculture) 

Parcel ID #s: 19-20-28-0000-00-013 

 

VICINITY MAP  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
  

SUBJECT  

PROPERTIES 

SUBJECT  

PROPERTIES 

15



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
AMERIGO FARMS, INC. – LARGE SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 8 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 16



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
AMERIGO FARMS, INC. – LARGE SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 9 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 
 

 

  

17



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
AMERIGO FARMS, INC. – LARGE SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 10 

 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

  

18



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
AMERIGO FARMS, INC. – LARGE SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 11 

 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING USES 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

19



ORDINANCE NO. 2565 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 

THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING THE 

FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM MIXED USE TO 

AGRICULTURE (0-1 DU/5 AC) FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 

GENERALLY LOCATED EAST OF PLYMOUTH SORRENTO ROAD AND 

NORTH OF PONKAN ROAD, COMPRISING 32.33 ACRES, MORE OR 

LESS AND OWNED BY AMERIGO FARMS, INC.; PROVIDING FOR 

SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, on October 2, 1991 adopted 

Ordinance No. 653 which adopted the Comprehensive Plan for the City of Apopka; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has subsequently amended the Comprehensive Plan for 

the City of Apopka, most recently through Ordinance No. 2562; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka’s Local Planning Agency and the City Council have 

conducted the prerequisite advertised public hearings, as per Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, relative 

to the transmittal and adoption of this ordinance and the requirements for amendment to the 

Comprehensive Plan.   

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows:  

 

 SECTION I: The City of Apopka hereby amends the Future Land Use Element of the 

adopted Comprehensive Plan as follows:   

 

 The Future Land Use Map is hereby amended for the property identified in Exhibit “A” of 

this Ordinance, and incorporated herein by reference.  

 

 SECTION II: This Ordinance shall become effective following adoption and upon issuance 

by the Department of Economic Opportunity or the Administration Commission, as may be 

applicable, a final order finding the amendment to be in compliance in accordance with Chapter 

163.3184.  

 

 SECTION III: If any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves 

to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, 

force, or effect of any other section or portion of a section or subsection or part of this ordinance.  

 

 SECTION IV:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed. 

 

SECTION V: This Ordinance shall become effective upon issuance of a final order by the 

Florida Department of Economic Opportunity finding the plan amendment in compliance in 

accordance with s.163.3184 (2)(a), Florida Statute. 

20



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2565 

PAGE 2 

 

 ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, this 

20th day of September, 2017. 

 

 

READ FIRST TIME: May 3, 2017 

  

READ SECOND TIME 

AND ADOPTED: 

 

September 20, 2017 

 

 

 

_______________________________________                                                                       

       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                            

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

_______________________________                                                                       

Clifford B. Shepard, City Attorney 

 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: March 24, 2017; August 25, 2017 

  

21



EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Amerigo Farms, Inc. 
Property Owner 
32.33 +/- Acres 

Proposed Large Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 
From: Mixed Use 

To: Agriculture (0-1 du/5 ac) 
 

Parcel ID #s: 19-20-28-0000-00-013 
 
 

 

22



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. Ordinance No. 2585 – Second Reading – Admin. Rezoning – Chandler – Quasi-Judicial   David Moon 
  

23



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: September 20, 2017 
X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 
X OTHER:  2017-2 Administrative Rezoning   Vicinity Map 
    Adjacent Zoning 
    Adjacent Uses 
    Existing Uses 

  
 

SUBJECT:    ORDINANCE NO. 2585 – ADMINISTRATIVE CHANGE OF ZONING – 
RICHARD CHANGLER (CASE #2017-2-1) 

    
REQUEST:  SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2585 - ADMINISTRATIVE 

CHANGE OF ZONING –RICHARD CHANDLER, FROM “COUNTY” A-1 
(ZIP) TO “CITY” R-1AAA (RESIDENTIAL) 

  
SUMMARY:  
 
OWNER:   Richard Chandler 
 
APPLICANT:   City of Apopka  
  
LOCATION:   West of North Rock Springs Road, south of West Kelly Park Road 
 
PARCEL ID #(S):  18-20-28-0000-00-030; 18-20-28-0000-00-063 
 
FUTURE LAND USE: Residential Very Low Suburban (0 - 2 du/acres) 
 
ZONING:   A-1 (ZIP) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: R-1AAA 
 
EXISTING USE:  Residential Single-Family Home 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Residential single-family home (existing) 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING ZONING:  1 residential Unit 
    PROPOSED ZONING: 1 residential Unit 
 
TRACT SIZE:   5.118 +/- Acres 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 
N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
  

24



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – RICHARD CHANDLER 
PAGE 2 

 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Policy 3.9 of the Apopka Comprehensive Plan 2030 requires that a “city” 

zoning classification be assigned to annexed properties. The subject property was annexed into the City of 

Apopka.  Staff is requesting an administrative rezoning for the subject property to comply with the policy 

set forth in the Comprehensive Plan. The proposed city zoning category is comparable to the densities and 

intensities and uses allowed under the existing “county” zoning classification, and the proposed zoning 

change is compatible with the character of the surrounding area. 

 

The subject property is located in an area characterized as single-family and agricultural in nature, with 

“City” R-1AAA zoning to the north, south, and west of the subject property, and PUD to the east of the 

site. The existing and proposed use of the subject site for a residential building is a permitted use in the 

proposed R-1AAA zoning district and compatible with the surrounding zoning and uses. 

 

Staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that adequate public facilities exist to support 

this zoning change (see attached Zoning Report). 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed zoning classification is consistent with the 

Future Land Use Designation assigned to the property. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The request of the proposed rezoning would result in a number of 

residential units considered ‘de minimus’ and, therefore, a school capacity determination is not required for 

the subject properties. 

 

JOINT PLANNING AREA/OVERLAY: The subject property is located within the “Northern Area” of 

the Joint Planning Area with Orange County. The subject properties are not located within any other city 

overall or protection area. 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 

any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on July 7, 2017.   

 

PROPERTY OWNER NOTIFICATION: The property owner was notified of this administrative 

rezoning and public hearing dates at least thirty (30) days prior to the adoption public hearing.   

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

August 8, 2017 – Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

September 6, 2017 – City Council (1:30 pm) – 1st Reading 

September 20, 2017 – City Council (7:00 pm) – 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

July 21, 2017 – Public Notice and Notification 

September 8, 2017 – Ordinance Heading Ad 

  

25



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – RICHARD CHANDLER 
PAGE 3 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee finds the change in zoning consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 

and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, recommending approval of the change in Zoning 

from “County” A-1 (ZIP) to “City” R-1AAA. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on August 8, 2017, found the change in zoning consistent with 

the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, and unanimously 

recommended approval of the change in Zoning from “County” A-1 (ZIP) to “City” R-1AAA for the 

Richard Chandler property. 

 

The City Council, at its meeting on September 6, 2017, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2585 

and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on September 20, 2017. 

 

Adopt Ordinance No. 2585. 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

26



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – RICHARD CHANDLER 
PAGE 4 

 

ZONING REPORT 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Residential Very Low Suburban (0-2 du/ac) R-1AAA Orchid Estates Subdivision 

East (City) Residential Estates (1 du/ ac) PUD Rock Springs Ridge Subdivision 

South (City) Residential Very Low Suburban (0-2 du/ac) R-1AAA vacant 

West (City) Residential Very Low Suburban (0-2 du/ac) R-1AAA Orchid Estates Subdivision 

 
LAND USE &  
TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: The subject property fronts and is accessed by a local roadway (Jason 

Dwelley Pkwy). It is similar in nature to the surrounding agricultural and 
residential areas, and there should be no impact on traffic.    

 
COMPREHENSIVE  
PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed R-1AAA zoning is consistent with the City’s Residential 

Very Low Suburban Future Land Use designation and with the character of 
the surrounding area and future proposed development. The R-1AAA 
zoning classification is one of the acceptable zoning categories allowed 
within the Residential Very Low Suburban Future Land Use category.   
Development Plans shall not exceed the density allowed in the adopted 
Future Land Use Designation. 

 
AG DISTRICT 
REQUIREMENTS:  

Minimum Living Area: 1,800 sq. ft. (Single-family) 

Minimum Site Area: 16,000 sq. ft. 

Minimum Lot Width NA 

Setbacks: Front: 25 ft.  

 Rear: 20 ft.  

 Side: 10 ft.  

 Corner 25 ft.  
Based on the above zoning standards, the subject site complies with code 
requirements for the R-1AAA district. 

 
BUFFERYARD  
REQUIREMENTS: 1.Developments shall provide a minimum six-foot high brick, stone or 

decorative block finished wall adjacent to all external roadways, erected 
inside a minimum ten-foot landscaped bufferyard. Landscape materials 
shall be placed adjacent to the right-of-way, on the exterior of the buffer 
wall. The city may allow the developer the option to provide up to 50 
percent of the buffer wall length in a six-foot wrought iron fence between 
solid columns. The columns shall be a minimum of 32 feet off-set and shall 
have a stone, brick or decorative block finish. Where wrought iron is used, 
additional landscape materials and irrigation may be required. This will be 
determined by the city on a case-by-case basis. 

 
2. Areas adjacent to agricultural districts or activities shall provide a 
minimum five-foot buffer yard and a minimum six-foot high brick, stone 
or decorative block finished wall unless acceptable alternatives are 
submitted for approval. 
 
 

27



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – RICHARD CHANDLER 
PAGE 5 

 
ALLOWABLE USES: Single-family dwellings and their customary accessory structures and uses 

in accordance with article VII of this code. Supporting infrastructure and 
public facilities of less than five acres as defined in this code and in 
accordance with section 2.02.01. 

 
 
 
  

28



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – RICHARD CHANDLER 
PAGE 6 

 
Richard Chandler  

2.619 +/- Acres & 2.499 +/- Acres 
Proposed Zoning Change: 

From: “County” A-1 (ZIP) (Agriculture)  
To: “City” R-1AAA (Residential)  

                         Parcel ID #: 18-20-28-0000-00-030 & 18-20-28-0000-00-063 
 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

  

Subject Property 

29



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – RICHARD CHANDLER 
PAGE 7 

 

 
 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

30



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – RICHARD CHANDLER 
PAGE 8 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

31



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – RICHARD CHANDLER 
PAGE 9 

 

 

 

EXISTING 

USES 

 

 

 
 

 
 

32



ORDINANCE NO. 2585  

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING THE 
ZONING FROM “COUNTY” A-1 (AGRICULTURE) TO “CITY” R-1AAA 
(RESIDENTIAL) FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTIES GENERALLY 
LOCATED WITHIN THE CITY LIMITS OF APOPKA, COMPRISING 5.1 
ACRES, MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY RICHARD CHANDLER; 
PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest of 
the public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the City; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has requested a change in zoning on said property as 
identified in Section I of this ordinance; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed AG zoning has been found to be consistent with the City of Apopka 
Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land Development Code. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being situated in 
the City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby R-1AAA (Residential), as defined in the Apopka Land 
Development Code.  
 
Legal Description: 
 

BEG 345 FT S OF NE COR OF SE1/4 W 330.75 FT S 330 FT E 330.87 FT N 330 FT TO POB 
PART OF TRACT 40 OF UNRECORDED PLAT DEED 921/429 IN SEC 18-20-28 (Parcel 

18-20-28-0000-00-063),  
 
and  
 
E1/2 OF THE FOLLOWING PARCEL BEG AT NE COR OF SE1/4 W 661.25 FT S 345 FT E 
661.51 FT N 345 FT TO POB BEING TR 38 UNRECORDED PLAT IN DEED 921/429 IN 

SEC 18-20-28 (Parcel 18-20-28-0000-00-030) 
 
Contains:    5.118 +/- Acres 
 

 Section II.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the 

City of Apopka, Florida. 

 

 Section III.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is 

hereby authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, to include said designation.   

  

Section IV. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance 

proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this 

ordinance. 

33



ORDINANCE NO. 2585 

PAGE 2 
 

 

 

 Section V.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed.   

 

 Section VI.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon adoption. 

 
 

                       
 
 

       _____________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: January 27, 2017  

March 3, 2017 

READ FIRST TIME:  September 6, 2017 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
September 20, 2017 

34



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

3. Ordinance No. 2586 – Second Reading – Admin. Rezoning – Sanders – Quasi-Judicial    David Moon 
  

35



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: September 20, 2017 
X SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 
X OTHER: 2017-2 Administrative Rezoning  Vicinity Map 
    Adjacent Zoning Map 
    Adjacent Uses Map 
    Existing Uses 

  
 

SUBJECT:    ORDINANCE NO. 2586 – ADMINISTRATIVE CHANGE OF ZONING – 
BOBBY AND JESSICA SANDERS (CASE #2017-2-2) 

    
REQUEST:  SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2586 – ADMINISTRATIVE 

CHANGE OF ZONING – BOBBY AND JESSICA SANDERS, FROM 
“COUNTY” A-1 (ZIP) TO “CITY” R-1AAA (RESIDENTIAL) 

  
SUMMARY:  
 
OWNERS:   Bobby and Jessica Sanders  
 
APPLICANT:   City of Apopka (CASE # 2017-2-2) 
  
LOCATION:   West of North Rock Springs Road, south of West Kelly Park Road 
 
PARCEL ID #(S):  8-20-28-0000-00-129 
 
FUTURE LAND USE:  Residential Very Low Suburban (0 - 2 du/acres) 
 
ZONING:   A-1 (ZIP) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: R-1AAA 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Vacant (existing) 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING ZONING:  1 residential Unit 
    PROPOSED ZONING: 1 residential Unit 
 
TRACT SIZE:   2.501 +/- Acres 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 
N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 36



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – BOBBY & JESSICA SANDERS 
PAGE 2 

 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Policy 3.9 of the Apopka Comprehensive Plan 2030 requires that a “city” 

zoning classification be assigned to annexed properties. The subject property was annexed into the City of 

Apopka. Staff is requesting an administrative rezoning for the subject property to comply with the policy 

set forth in the Comprehensive Plan. The proposed city zoning category is comparable to the densities and 

intensities and uses allowed under the existing “county” zoning classification, and the proposed zoning 

change is compatible with the character of the surrounding area. 

 

The subject property is located in an area characterized as single-family and agricultural in nature, with 

“City” R-1AAA zoning to the north, south, and west of the subject property, and vacant, A-1 (ZIP) to the 

east of the site. The existing and proposed use of the subject site for a residential building is a permitted use 

in the proposed R-1AAA zoning district and compatible with the surrounding zoning and uses. 

 

Staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that adequate public facilities exist to support 

this zoning change (see attached Zoning Report). 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed zoning classification is consistent with the 

Future Land Use Designation assigned to the property. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The request of the proposed rezoning would result in a number of 

residential units considered ‘de minimus’ and, therefore, a school capacity determination is not required for 

the subject properties. 

 

JOINT PLANNING AREA/OVERLAY: The subject property is located within the “Northern Area” of 

the Joint Planning Area with Orange County. The subject properties are not located within any other city 

overall or protection area.  

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 

any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on July 7, 2017.   

 

PROPERTY OWNER NOTIFICATION: The property owner was notified of this administrative 

rezoning and public hearing dates at least thirty (30) days prior to the adoption public hearing.   

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

August 8, 2017 – Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

September 6, 2017 – City Council (1:30 pm) – 1st Reading 

September 20, 2017 – City Council (7:00 pm) – 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

July 21, 2017 – Public Notice and Notification 

September 8, 2017 – Ordinance Heading Ad 

  

37



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – BOBBY & JESSICA SANDERS 
PAGE 3 

 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee finds the change in zoning consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and 
compatible with the character of the surrounding area, recommending approval of the change in Zoning from 
“County” A-1 (ZIP) to “City” R-1AAA. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on August 8, 2017, found the change in zoning consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, and unanimously recommended 
approval of the change in Zoning from “County” A-1 (ZIP) to “City” R-1AAA for the Sanders property. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on September 6, 2017, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2586 
and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on September 20, 2017. 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2586. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 
and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

  

38



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – BOBBY & JESSICA SANDERS 
PAGE 4 

 

ZONING REPORT 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Residential Estates (1 du/ac) R-1AAA Residential  

East (City) Residential Estates (1 du/ ac) A-1(ZIP) vacant 

South (City) Residential Very Low Suburban (0-2 du/ac) R-1AAA vacant 

West (City) Residential Very Low Suburban (0-2 du/ac) R-1AAA Orchid Estates Subdivision 

 
LAND USE &  
TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: The subject property fronts and is accessed by an adjacent property to the 

north and connects to Jason Dwelley Parkway, a city collector road.. It is 
similar in nature to the surrounding agricultural and residential areas, and 
there should be no additional impact on traffic.    

 
COMPREHENSIVE  
PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed R-1AAA zoning is consistent with the City’s Residential 

Very Low Suburban Future Land Use designation and with the character of 
the surrounding area and future proposed development. The R-1AAA 
zoning classification is one of the acceptable zoning categories allowed 
within the Residential Very Low Suburban Future Land Use category.   
Development Plans shall not exceed the density allowed in the adopted 
Future Land Use Designation. 

 
AG DISTRICT 
REQUIREMENTS:  

Minimum Living Area: 1,800 sq. ft. (Single-family) 

Minimum Site Area: 16,000 sq. ft. 

Minimum Lot Width NA 

Setbacks: Front: 25 ft.  

 Rear: 20 ft.  

 Side: 10 ft.  

 Corner 25 ft.  

Based on the above zoning standards, the subject site complies with code 

requirements for the R-1AAA district. 

 

BUFFERYARD  

REQUIREMENTS: 1.Developments shall provide a minimum six-foot high brick, stone or 

decorative block finished wall adjacent to all external roadways, erected 

inside a minimum ten-foot landscaped bufferyard. Landscape materials 

shall be placed adjacent to the right-of-way, on the exterior of the buffer 

wall. The city may allow the developer the option to provide up to 50 

percent of the buffer wall length in a six-foot wrought iron fence between 

solid columns. The columns shall be a minimum of 32 feet off-set and shall 

have a stone, brick or decorative block finish. Where wrought iron is used, 

additional landscape materials and irrigation may be required. This will be 

determined by the city on a case-by-case basis. 

 

 39



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – BOBBY & JESSICA SANDERS 
PAGE 5 

 

2. Areas adjacent to agricultural districts or activities shall provide a 

minimum five-foot buffer yard and a minimum six-foot high brick, 

stone or decorative block finished wall unless acceptable alternatives 

are submitted for approval. 

 

ALLOWABLE USES: Single-family dwellings and their customary accessory structures and 

uses in accordance with article VII of this code. Supporting 

infrastructure and public facilities of less than five acres as defined in 

this code and in accordance with section 2.02.01. 

  

40



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – BOBBY & JESSICA SANDERS 
PAGE 6 

 
 

Sanders Bobby/Jessica 

2.501 +/- Acres 

Proposed Zoning Change: 

From: “County” A-1 (ZIP) (Agriculture) 

To: “City” R-1AAA (Residential) 

Parcel ID #: 18-20-28-0000-00-129 
 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

  

Subject 

Property 

41



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – BOBBY & JESSICA SANDERS 
PAGE 7 

 

 
 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Subject 

Property 

42



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – BOBBY & JESSICA SANDERS 
PAGE 8 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

43



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – BOBBY & JESSICA SANDERS 
PAGE 9 

 

 

 

EXISTING 

USES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

44



ORDINANCE NO. 2586 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING THE 

ZONING FROM “COUNTY” A-1 (AGRICULTURE) TO “CITY” R-1AAA 

(RESIDENTIAL) FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTIES GENERALLY 

LOCATED WITHIN THE CITY LIMITS OF APOPKA, COMPRISING 2.5 

ACRES, MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY BOBBY AND JESSICA 

SANDERS: PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest of 

the public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the City; 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has requested a change in zoning on said property as 

identified in Section I of this ordinance; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the proposed AG zoning has been found to be consistent with the City of Apopka 

Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land Development Code. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows: 

 

 Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being situated in 

the City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby R-1AAA (Residential), as defined in the Apopka Land 

Development Code.  

 

Legal Description: 

 
COMM 345 FT S OF NE COR OF SE1/4 W 330.75 FT FOR POB CONT W 330.76 FT S 330 

FT E 330.88 FT N 330 FT TO POB PART OF TRACT 40 OF UNRECORDED PLAT DEED 

921/429 IN SEC 18-20-28 

 
Parcel No. 8-20-28-0000-00-129 
Contains:    2.5 +/- Acres 

 

 Section II.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the 

City of Apopka, Florida. 

 

 Section III.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is 

hereby authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, to include said designation.   

  

Section IV. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance 

proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this 

ordinance. 

45



ORDINANCE NO. 2585 

PAGE 2 
 

 

 

 Section V.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed.   

 

 Section VI.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon adoption. 

 
 

                       
 
 

       _____________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: July 21, 2017  

September 8, 2017 

READ FIRST TIME:  September 6, 2017 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
September 20, 2017 

46



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

4. Ordinance No. 2587 – Second Reading – Admin. Rezoning – Jolly Products & Services – Quasi-Judicial  
 David Moon 

  

47



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: September 20, 2017 
X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 
X OTHER: 2017-2 Administrative Rezoning   Vicinity Map 
    Adjacent Zoning 
    Adjacent Uses 
    Existing Uses   

 
 
 

SUBJECT:    ORDINANCE NO. 2587 – ADMINISTRATIVE CHANGE OF ZONING – 
JOLLY PRODUCTS AND SERVICES INC(CASE #2017-2-3) 

    
REQUEST:  SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2587 - ADMINISTRATIVE 

CHANGE OF ZONING – JOLLY PRODUCTS AND SERVICES INC, FROM 
“COUNTY” A-1 (ZIP) TO “CITY” AG (AGRICULTURE)  

 
 
 
  
SUMMARY:  
 
OWNER:   Jolly Products and Services Inc 
 
APPLICANT:   City of Apopka  
  
LOCATION:   East of Round Lake Road, north of West Kelly Park Road 
 
PARCEL ID #(S):  11-20-27-0000-00-052 
 
FUTURE LAND USE:  Rural Settlement (0 - 2 du/acres) 
 
ZONING:   A-1 (ZIP) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: AG (Agriculture) 
 
EXISTING USE:  Round Lake Road Nursery 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Nursery (existing) 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING ZONING:  1 Nonresidential Unit 
    PROPOSED ZONING: 1 Nonresidential Unit 
 
TRACT SIZE:   6.86 +/- Acres 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 
N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 
 

48



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – JOLLY PRODUCTS AND SERVICES 
PAGE 2 

 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Policy 3.9 of the Apopka Comprehensive Plan 2030 requires that a “city” 

zoning classification be assigned to annexed properties. The subject property was annexed into the City of 

Apopka. Staff is requesting an administrative rezoning for the subject property to comply with the policy 

set forth in the Comprehensive Plan. The proposed city zoning category is comparable to the densities and 

intensities and uses allowed under the existing “county” zoning classification, and the proposed zoning 

change is compatible with the character of the surrounding area. 

 

The subject property is located in an area characterized as single-family and agricultural in nature, with 

“City” A-1(ZIP) zoning to the east and south of the subject property, and “County” A-1 to the west and 

north. The existing and proposed use of the subject site for a nonresidential building is a permitted use in 

the proposed AG zoning district and compatible with the surrounding zoning and uses. 

 

Staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that adequate public facilities exist to support 

this zoning change (see attached Zoning Report). 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed zoning classification is consistent with the 

Future Land Use Designation assigned to the property. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The request of the proposed rezoning would result in no residential 

units, therefore, a school capacity determination is not required for the subject properties. 

 

JOINT PLANNING AREA/OVERLAY: The subject property is located within the “Northern Area” of 

the Joint Planning Area with Orange County. The subject properties are not located within any other city 

overall or protection area.  

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 

any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on July 7, 2017.   

 

PROPERTY OWNER NOTIFICATION: The property owner was notified of this administrative 

rezoning and public hearing dates at least thirty (30) days prior to the adoption public hearing.   

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

August 8, 2017 – Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

September 6, 2017 – City Council (1:30 pm) – 1st Reading 

September 20, 2017 – City Council (7:00 pm) – 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

July 21, 2017 – Public Notice and Notification 

September 8, 2017 – Ordinance Heading Ad 

  

49



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – JOLLY PRODUCTS AND SERVICES 
PAGE 3 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee finds the change in zoning consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 
and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, recommending approval of the change in Zoning 
from “County” A-1 (ZIP) to “City” AG. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on August 8, 2017, found the change in zoning consistent with 
the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, and unanimously 
recommend approval of the change in Zoning from “County” A-1 (ZIP) to “City” AG for the Jolly Products 
and Services property. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on September 6, 2017, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2587 
and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on September 20, 2017. 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2587. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 
and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

  

50



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – JOLLY PRODUCTS AND SERVICES 
PAGE 4 

 

ZONING REPORT 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Rural (1 du/10 acres) A-1 Single-Family home 

East (City) Mixed Use  A-1(ZIP) vacant 

South (City) Rural Settlement (0 – 1 du/5 acres) A-1(ZIP) nursery 

West (County) Rural (1 du/10 acres) A-1 vacant 

 
LAND USE &  
TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: The subject property fronts and is accessed by a local roadway (Round Lake 

Rd). It is similar in nature to the surrounding agricultural and residential 
areas, and there should be no impact on traffic.    

 
COMPREHENSIVE  
PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed AG zoning is consistent with the City’s Rural Settlement 

Future Land Use designation and with the character of the surrounding area 
and future proposed development. The AG zoning classification is one of 
the acceptable zoning categories allowed within the Rural Settlement Future 
Land Use category.   Development Plans shall not exceed the density 
allowed in the adopted Future Land Use Designation. 

 
AG DISTRICT 
REQUIREMENTS:  

Minimum Living Area: 1,200 sq. ft. (Single-family) 

Minimum Site Area: 5 acres 

Minimum Lot Width NA 

Setbacks: Front: 25 ft.  

 Rear: 25 ft.  

 Side: 25 ft.  

 Corner 25 ft.  

Based on the above zoning standards, the subject site complies with code 

requirements for the AG district. 

BUFFERYARD  

REQUIREMENTS: Uses including, but not limited to, kennels, livestock barn stables, and 

other similar uses shall be a minimum of 100 feet from all property lines. 

Apiaries shall be located 200 feet from any property line. All other yard 

setbacks shall be a minimum of 25 feet from the property line. 

ALLOWABLE USES:  
1. Office building and accessory buildings in conjunction with 

commercial agriculture uses for packing, shipping, and storage 
purposes. 
 

2. Commercial wholesale foliage plant production nursery. 
 

3. Tenant dwellings, for year-round employees, on the basis of one 
dwelling unit for each five acres of land, provided such dwellings are 
accessory to the principal use of land. 
 

4. Livestock barns and stables. 
51



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – JOLLY PRODUCTS AND SERVICES 
PAGE 5 

 
 

5. Crops and animal production and the buildings and structures 
necessary to support such production. 
 

6. Kennels. 
 

7. Single-family dwellings, including mobile homes, and their 
customary accessory structures and uses in accordance with article 
VII of this Code. 
 

8. Apiaries. 
  

52



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – JOLLY PRODUCTS AND SERVICES 
PAGE 6 

 

Jolly Products and Services 

6.86 +/- Acres 

Proposed Zoning Change: 

From: “County” A-1 (ZIP) (Agriculture) 

To: “City” AG (Agriculture) 

Parcel ID #: 11-20-27-0000-00-052 
 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

 
  

Subject 
Property 

53



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – JOLLY PRODUCTS AND SERVICES 
PAGE 7 

 

 
 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Subject 
Property 

54



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – JOLLY PRODUCTS AND SERVICES 
PAGE 8 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

55



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – JOLLY PRODUCTS AND SERVICES 
PAGE 9 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING USES 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

56



ORDINANCE NO. 2587 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING THE 

ZONING FROM “COUNTY” A-1 (AGRICULTURE) TO “CITY” AG 

(AGRICULTURE) FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTIES GENERALLY 

LOCATED WITHIN THE CITY LIMITS OF APOPKA, COMPRISING 6.86 

ACRES, MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY JOLLY PRODUCTS AND 

SERVICES; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

  

 

WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest of the 

public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has requested a change in zoning on said property as 

identified in Section I of this ordinance; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the proposed AG zoning has been found to be consistent with the City of Apopka 

Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land Development Code. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows: 

 

 Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being situated in 

the City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby AG (Agriculture), as defined in the Apopka Land Development 

Code.  

 

Legal Description: 

 
N1/2 OF N1/2 OF SW1/4 OF NW1/4 (LESS RD R/W ON W) & (LESS E 398.84 FT 

THEREOF) OF SEC 11-20-27 

 

Parcel No. 11-20-27-0000-00-052 

Contains:   6.86 +/- Acres 

 

 Section II.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the 

City of Apopka, Florida. 

 

 Section III.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is 

hereby authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, to include said designation.   

  

Section IV. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance 

proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this 

ordinance. 

 

57



ORDINANCE NO. 2587 

PAGE 2 
 

 

 Section V.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed.   

 

 Section VI.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon adoption. 

 
 

                       
 
 

       _____________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: July 21, 2017  

September 8, 2017 

READ FIRST TIME:  September 6, 2017 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
September 20, 2017 

58



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

5. Ordinance No. 2588 – Second Reading – Admin. Rezoning – Edgel LLC. – Quasi-Judicial   David Moon  
  

59



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: September 20, 2017 
X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 
X OTHER: 2017-2 Administrative Rezoning   Vicinity Map 
    Adjacent Zoning Map 
    Adjacent Uses Map 
    Existing Uses 

  
 

SUBJECT:    ORDINANCE NO. 2588 – ADMINISTRATIVE CHANGE OF ZONING EDGEL 
LLC – (CASE #2017-2-4) 

    
REQUEST:  SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2588 - ADMINISTRATIVE 

CHANGE OF ZONING – EDGEL LLC, FROM “COUNTY” A-2 (ZIP) TO 
“CITY” AG (AGRICULTURE)  

  
SUMMARY:  
 
OWNER:   Edgel LLC 
 
APPLICANT:   City of Apopka  
  
LOCATION:   East of North Rock Springs Road, south of East Ponkan Road 
 
PARCEL ID #(S):  27-20-28-0000-00-061 
 
FUTURE LAND USE:  Agriculture (1 du/5 acres) 
 
ZONING:   A-2 (ZIP) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: AG (Agriculture) 
 
EXISTING USE:  Nursery\ Manufactured Home 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Agriculture or residential 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING ZONING:  1 Nonresidential Unit 
    PROPOSED ZONING: 1 Nonresidential Unit 
 
TRACT SIZE:   4.95 +/- Acres 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 
N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

60



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – EDGEL LLC 
PAGE 2 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Policy 3.9 of the Apopka Comprehensive Plan 2030 requires that a “city” 

zoning classification be assigned to annexed properties. The subject property was annexed into the City of 

Apopka. Staff is requesting an administrative rezoning for the subject property to comply with the policy 

set forth in the Comprehensive Plan. The proposed city zoning category is comparable to the densities and 

intensities and uses allowed under the existing “county” zoning classification, and the proposed zoning 

change is compatible with the character of the surrounding area. 

 

The subject property is located in an area characterized as single-family and agricultural in nature, with 

“County” A-2 zoning to the east and north of the subject property, and “City” AG to the south and CN to 

the west. The existing and proposed use of the subject site for a nonresidential building is a permitted use 

in the proposed AG zoning district and compatible with the surrounding zoning and uses. This parcel is 

located in the Wekiva River Protection Area and north of Lester Road, and is limited to a maximum density 

of one unit per five aces pursuant to the Joint Planning Agreement with Orange County government.  

 

Staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that adequate public facilities exist to support 

this zoning change (see attached Zoning Report). 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed zoning classification is consistent with the 

Future Land Use Designation assigned to the property. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The request of the proposed rezoning would result in no residential 

units, therefore, a school capacity determination is not required for the subject properties. 

 

JOINT PLANNING AREA/OVERLAY: The subject property is located within the “Northern Central 

Area” of the Joint Planning Area with Orange County and the Wekiva River Protection Area. 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 

any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on July 7, 2017.   

 

PROPERTY OWNER NOTIFICATION: The property owner was notified of this administrative 

rezoning and public hearing dates at least thirty (30) days prior to the adoption public hearing.   

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

August 8, 2017 – Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

September 6, 2017 – City Council (1:30 pm) – 1st Reading 

September 20, 2017 – City Council (7:00 pm) – 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

July 21, 2017 – Public Notice and Notification 

September 8, 2017 – Ordinance Heading Ad 

  

61



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – EDGEL LLC 
PAGE 3 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee finds the change in zoning consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 

and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, recommending approval of the change in Zoning 

from “County” A-1 (ZIP) to “City” AG. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on August 8, 2017, found the change in zoning consistent with 

the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, and unanimously 

recommended approval of the change in Zoning from “County” A-1 (ZIP) to “City” AG for the Edgel 

parcel. 

 

The City Council, at its meeting on September 6, 2017, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2588 

and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on September 20, 2017. 

 

Adopt Ordinance No. 2588. 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

  

62



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – EDGEL LLC 
PAGE 4 

 

ZONING REPORT 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 acres) A-2 Vacant 

East (County) Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 acres) A-2 Single-family home 

South (City) AG (0 – 1 du/ 5 acre) AG (Agriculture) Warehouse 

West (City) Commercial CN (Neighborhood Commercial) Vacant  

 
LAND USE &  
TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: The subject property fronts and is accessed by a Minor Arterial roadway 

(N Rock Springs Rd). It is similar in nature to the surrounding 
agricultural and residential areas, and there should be no impact on 
traffic.    

 
COMPREHENSIVE  
PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed AG zoning is consistent with the City’s Agriculture Future 

Land Use designation and with the character of the surrounding area and 
future proposed development. The AG zoning classification is one of the 
acceptable zoning categories allowed within the Agriculture Future Land 
Use category.   Development Plans shall not exceed the density allowed 
in the adopted Future Land Use Designation. 

 
AG DISTRICT 
REQUIREMENTS:  

Minimum Living Area: 1,200 sq. ft. (Single-family) 

Minimum Site Area: 5 acres 

Minimum Lot Width NA 

Setbacks: Front: 25 ft.  

 Rear: 25 ft.  

 Side: 25 ft.  

 Corner 25 ft.  

Based on the above zoning standards, the subject site complies with 

code requirements for the AG district. 

 

BUFFERYARD  

REQUIREMENTS: Uses including, but not limited to, kennels, livestock barn stables, and 

other similar uses shall be a minimum of 100 feet from all property 

lines. Apiaries shall be located 200 feet from any property line. All 

other yard setbacks shall be a minimum of 25 feet from the property 

line. 

 

 

  

63



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – EDGEL LLC 
PAGE 5 

 

ALLOWABLE USES:  
1. Office building and accessory buildings in conjunction with 

commercial agriculture uses for packing, shipping, and storage 

purposes. 

 

2. Commercial wholesale foliage plant production nursery. 

 

3. Tenant dwellings, for year-round employees, on the basis of one 

dwelling unit for each five acres of land, provided such dwellings 

are accessory to the principal use of land. 

 

4. Livestock barns and stables. 

 

5. Crops and animal production and the buildings and structures 

necessary to support such production. 

 

6. Kennels. 

 

7. Single-family dwellings, including mobile homes, and their 

customary accessory structures and uses in accordance with article 

VII of this Code. 

 

8. Apiaries. 

  

64



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – EDGEL LLC 
PAGE 6 

 

 

 

Edgel LLC 

4.95 +/- Acres 

Proposed Zoning Change: 

From: “County” A-1 (ZIP) (Agriculture) 

To: “City” AG (Agriculture) 

Parcel ID #: 27-20-28-0000-00-061 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 
  

Subject Property 

Subject 

Property 

65



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – EDGEL LLC 
PAGE 7 

 

 
 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Subject Property 

Subject 
Property 

66



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – EDGEL LLC 
PAGE 8 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

67



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – EDGEL LLC 
PAGE 9 

 

 

 

EXISTING 

USES 

 

 

 
 

 

 

68



ORDINANCE NO. 2588 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING THE 

ZONING FROM “COUNTY” A-2 (AGRICULTURE) TO “CITY” AG 

(AGRICULTURE) FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTIES GENERALLY 

LOCATED WITHIN THE CITY LIMITS OF APOPKA, COMPRISING 4.95 

ACRES, MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY EDGEL LLC; PROVIDING FOR 

DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

  

 

WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest of the 

public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has requested a change in zoning on said property as 

identified in Section I of this ordinance; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the proposed AG zoning has been found to be consistent with the City of Apopka 

Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land Development Code. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows: 

 

 Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being situated in 

the City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby AG (Agriculture), as defined in the Apopka Land Development 

Code.  

 

Legal Description: 

 
BEG 60 FT E & 360 FT N OF SW COR OF SEC 27-20-28 TH RUN N 300 FT E TO A PT 

553.88 FT W OF NE COR OF S1/2 OF SW1/4 OF SW 1/4 RUN S 306.74 FT W 714 FT TO 

POB 
 

Parcel No. 27-20-28-0000-00-061 

Contains:   4.95 +/- Acres 

 

 Section II.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the 

City of Apopka, Florida. 

 

 Section III.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is 

hereby authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, to include said designation.   

  

Section IV. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance 

proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this 

ordinance. 

 

69



ORDINANCE NO. 2587 

PAGE 2 
 

 

 Section V.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed.   

 

 Section VI.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon adoption. 

 
 

                       
 
 

       _____________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: July 21, 2017  

September 8, 2017 

READ FIRST TIME:  September 6, 2017 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
September 20, 2017 

70



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

6. Ordinance No. 2589 – Second Reading – Admin. Rezoning – Halm – Quasi-Judicial   David Moon  
  

71



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
c 

 
 

X PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: September 20, 2017 
 SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 
X OTHER: 2017-2 Administrative Rezoning   Vicinity Map 
    Adjacent Zoning 
    Adjacent Uses 
    Existing Uses 

  
 

SUBJECT:    ORDINANCE NO. 2589 – ADMINISTRATIVE CHANGE OF ZONING – 
DEBORAH HALM (CASE #2017-2-5) 

    
REQUEST:  SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2589 - ADMINISTRATIVE 

CHANGE OF ZONING – DEBORAH HAHN, FROM “COUNTY” A-1 (ZIP) TO 
“CITY” RCE-1 (RESIDENTIAL COUNTRY ESTATES- 1) 

  
SUMMARY:  
 
OWNER:   Deborah Halm   
 
APPLICANT:   City of Apopka  
  
LOCATION:   West of Mt. Plymouth Road, north of West Kelly Park Road 
 
PARCEL ID #(S):  09-20-28-7608-00-122 
 
FUTURE LAND USE:  Rural Settlement (0 - 2 du/acres) 
 
ZONING:   A-1 (ZIP) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: RCE-1 (Residential Country Estates) 
 
EXISTING USE:  Single-family home 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Single-family home (existing) 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING ZONING:  1 residential Unit 
    PROPOSED ZONING: 1 residential Unit 
 
TRACT SIZE:   0.91 +/- Acre 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   

 

N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 
 
 

72



CITY COUNCIL– SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – DEBORAH HALM 
PAGE 2 

 
 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Policy 3.9 of the Apopka Comprehensive Plan 2030 requires that a “City” 

zoning classification be assigned to annexed properties. The subject property was annexed into the City of 

Apopka.  Staff is requesting an administrative rezoning for the subject property to comply with the policy 

set forth in the Comprehensive Plan. The proposed city zoning category is comparable to the densities and 

intensities and uses allowed under the existing “County” zoning classification, and the proposed zoning 

change is compatible with the character of the surrounding area. 

 

The subject property is located in an area characterized as single-family and agricultural in nature, with 

“City” AG zoning to the west, north, and south of the subject property, and “County” R-CE to the east. The 

existing and proposed use of the subject site for a residential building is a permitted use in the proposed 

RCE-1 zoning district and compatible with the surrounding zoning and uses. 

 

Staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that adequate public facilities exist to support 

this zoning change (see attached Zoning Report). 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed zoning classification is consistent with the 

Future Land Use Designation assigned to the property. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The request of the proposed rezoning would result in a number of 

residential units considered ‘de minimus’ and, therefore, a school capacity determination is not required for 

the subject properties. 

 

JOINT PLANNING AREA/OVERLAY: The subject property is located within the “Northern Area” of 

the Joint Planning Area with Orange County. The subject properties are not located within any other city 

overall or protection area.  

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 

any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on July 7, 2017.   

 

PROPERTY OWNER NOTIFICATION: The property owner was notified of this administrative 

rezoning and public hearing dates at least thirty (30) days prior to the adoption public hearing.   

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

August 8, 2017 – Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

September 6, 2017 – City Council (1:30 pm) – 1st Reading 

September 20, 2017 – City Council (7:00 pm) – 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

July 21, 2017 – Public Notice and Notification 

September 8, 2017 – Ordinance Heading Ad 

  

73



CITY COUNCIL– SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – DEBORAH HALM 
PAGE 3 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee finds the change in zoning consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and 
compatible with the character of the surrounding area, recommending approval of the change in Zoning from 
“County” A-1 (ZIP) to “City” RCE-1. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on August 8, 2017, found the change in zoning consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, and unanimously recommended 
approval of the change in Zoning from “County” A-1 (ZIP) to “City” RCE-1 for the Halm property. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on September 6, 2017, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2589 
and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on September 20, 2017. 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2589. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 
and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
  

74



CITY COUNCIL– SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – DEBORAH HALM 
PAGE 4 

 

ZONING REPORT 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 acres) AG Single Family Home 

East (County) Low Density Residential (LDR) 4 du/ac R-CE Single Family Homes 

South (City) Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 acres) AG Single Family Home 

West (City) Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 acres) AG Single Family Home 

 
LAND USE &  
TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: The subject property fronts and is accessed by a local roadway (My 

Plymouth Rd). It is similar in nature to the surrounding agricultural and 
residential areas, and there should be no impact on traffic.    

 
COMPREHENSIVE  
PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed RCE-1 zoning is consistent with the City’s Rural 

Settlement Future Land Use designation and with the character of the 
surrounding area and future proposed development. The RCE-1 zoning 
classification is one of the acceptable zoning categories allowed within 
the Rural Settlement Future Land Use category.   Development Plans 
shall not exceed the density allowed in the adopted Future Land Use 
Designation. 

 
RCE-1 DISTRICT 
REQUIREMENTS:  

Minimum Living Area: 2,000 sq. ft.  

Minimum Site Area: 1 acre 

Minimum Lot Width NA 

Setbacks: Front: 35 ft.  

 Rear: 30 ft.  

 Side: 15 ft.  

 Corner 35 ft.  

Based on the above zoning standards, the subject site is legal non-

conforming for the RCE-1 district.  

 

BUFFERYARD  

REQUIREMENTS: 1. Developments shall provide a minimum six-foot high brick, stone or 

decorative block finished wall adjacent to all external roadways, erected 

inside a minimum ten-foot landscaped bufferyard. Landscape materials 

shall be placed adjacent to the right-of-way, on the exterior of the buffer 

wall. The city may allow the developer the option to provide up to 50 

percent of the buffer wall length in a six-foot wrought iron fence 

between solid columns. The columns shall be a minimum of 32 feet off-

set and shall have a stone, brick or decorative block finish. Where 

wrought iron is used, additional landscape materials and irrigation may 

be required. This will be determined by the city on a case-by-case basis. 

 

 
75



CITY COUNCIL– SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – DEBORAH HALM 
PAGE 5 

 

2. Areas adjacent to agricultural districts or activities shall provide a 

minimum five-foot bufferyard and a minimum six-foot high brick, 

stone or decorative block finished wall unless acceptable alternatives 

are submitted for approval. 

 

ALLOWABLE USES: 1. Single-family dwellings and their customary accessory structures and 

uses in accordance with article VII of this code. 

 

2. Guest/granny quarters in accordance with article VII of this code. 

  

76



CITY COUNCIL– SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – DEBORAH HALM 
PAGE 6 

 
Deborah Halm 
0.91 +/- Acre 

Proposed Zoning Change: 
From: “County” A-1 (ZIP) (Agriculture) 

To: “City” RCE-1 (Residential Country Estates) 
Parcel ID #: 09-20-28-7608-00-122 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 
  

Subject 
Property 

 

77



CITY COUNCIL– SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – DEBORAH HALM 
PAGE 7 

 

 
 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

78



CITY COUNCIL– SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – DEBORAH HALM 
PAGE 8 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

79



CITY COUNCIL– SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017-2 ADMINISTRATIVE REZONING – DEBORAH HALM 
PAGE 9 

 

 

 

EXISTING 

USES 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

80



ORDINANCE NO. 2589 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING THE 

ZONING FROM “COUNTY” A-1 (AGRICULTURE) TO “CITY” 

RESIDENTIAL COUNTY ESTATES - 1 (RCE-1) FOR CERTAIN REAL 

PROPERTIES GENERALLY LOCATED WITHIN THE CITY LIMITS OF 

APOPKA, COMPRISING 0.91 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY 

DEBORAH HALM; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

  

 

WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest of the 

public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has requested a change in zoning on said property as 

identified in Section I of this ordinance; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the proposed RCE-1 zoning has been found to be consistent with the City of 

Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land Development Code. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows: 

 

 Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being situated in 

the City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby RCE-1 (Residential County Estates 1), as defined in the Apopka 

Land Development Code.  

 

Legal Description: 

 
ROCK SPRINGS SUB Q/118 BEG 61 FT N OF SE COR LOT 12 RUN WLY 366 FT N 120 

FT ELY 350 FT TH S 120 FT TO POB 

 

Parcel No: 09-20-28-7608-00-122 

Contains:   0.91 +/- Acres 

 

 Section II.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the 

City of Apopka, Florida. 

 

 Section III.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is 

hereby authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, to include said designation.   

  

Section IV. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance 

proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this 

ordinance. 

 

81



ORDINANCE NO. 2589 

PAGE 2 
 

 

 Section V.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed.   

 

 Section VI.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon adoption. 

 
 

                       
 
 

       _____________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: July 21, 2017  

September 8, 2017 

READ FIRST TIME:  September 6, 2017 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
September 20, 2017 

82



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

7. Ordinance No. 2592 – Second Reading – Change of Zoning – Gates & Oak Royal Properties LLC. – Quasi-Judicial 
 David Moon 

  

83



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: September 20, 2017 
X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 
X OTHER:   Vicinity Map 
    Adjacent Zoning Map 
    Adjacent Uses Map 
    Existing Uses 
    Small Area Study Maps 
    Exhibit “A” – Ocoee SAS 
    Character Area Scenario 

  
SUBJECT:    ORDINANCE NO. 2592 – CHANGE OF ZONING – JOSEPH & SWANA GATES; AND 

OAK ROYAL PROPERTIES LLC 
    
REQUEST:  ORDINANCE NO. 2592 – SECOND READING AND ADOPTION - CHANGE OF 

ZONING – FROM PROFESSIONAL OFFICE\INSTITUTIONAL (PO/I) AND FROM 
AGRICULTURE (AG) TO MIXED-EC (MIXED -EMPLOYMENT CENTER) 

  
SUMMARY:  
 
OWNERS: Joseph & Swana Gates and Oak Royal Properties LLC 
 
APPLICANT: S&ME (Littlejohn Engineering) 
 
LOCATION: East of Ocoee Apopka Rd., north of Keene Rd. 
 
PARCEL ID NUMBERS: 20-21-28-0000-00-021;-024;-025 
 
EXISTING USE: Container nurseries and single-family residential home 
 
CURRENT ZONING:  PO/I (Professional Office/Institutional) & AG (Agriculture) 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Residential and non-residential mixed-use development 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: Mixed-EC (Note: this Future Land Use amendment request is being processed along with a request 

to change the Future Land Use Designation from Office and Residential Low to Mixed Use). 
 
TRACT SIZE:   22.4 +/- acres  
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 518 Units 
    PROPOSED: 975,744 sq. ft. non-residential and 336 multi-family units 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners     HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 84



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
JOSEPH & SWANA GATES AND OAK ROYAL PROPERTIES, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 
 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The subject parcels were annexed into the City of Apopka on December 5, 2001 

through Ordinance 1421.   

 

The proposed change of zoning is being requested by the owner/applicant.  Presently, the subject property has not 

yet been assigned a “City” zoning category.  Applicant is requesting the City to assign a zoning classification of 

Mixed – EC (Mixed Use – Employment Center) to the property.  

 

A request to assign a change of zoning to Mixed-EC (Mixed Use Employment Center) is compatible to the 

adjacent zoning classifications and with the general character of abutting properties and surrounding area.  The 

property owner is requesting the Mixed-EC zoning classification to accommodate the use of the property 

residential and non-residential development permitted within the Mixed-EC zoning district.  These uses are 

consistent with the proposed Mixed Use Future Land Use Designation, proposed zoning district and compatible 

with the general character of surrounding zoning and uses.  The change of zoning application covers 

approximately 22.4 acres. 

 

In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that adequate 

public facilities exist to support this zoning change (see attached Zoning Report). 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed use of the property is consistent with the Mixed 

Use ((0-15 du/ac and/or max 1.0 FAR)) Future Land Use designation and the City’s proposed Mixed-EC (Mixed 

Use – Employment Center) Zoning classification.  Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the 

Future Land Use policies. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  An executed capacity enhancement agreement with Orange County Public 

Schools will be required prior to adoption of the associated large scale future land use amendment. 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any 

public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on April 10, 2017 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

July 11, 2017 – Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

September 6, 2017 - City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading 

September 20, 2017 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 2nd Reading & Adoption 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

June 23, 2017 – Public Notice and Notification 

August 25, 2017 – Ordinance Heading & ¼ Page w/Map Ad 

September 8, 2017 – Ordinance Heading & ¼ Page w/Map Ad 

  

85



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
JOSEPH & SWANA GATES AND OAK ROYAL PROPERTIES, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 
 
   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 

and the Land Development Code recommends adoption of the change in Zoning from PO/I (Professional 

Office/Institutional) and AG (Agriculture) to Mixed Use – Employment Center, subject to the adoption of the 

associated large scale future land use amendment, for the properties owned by Joseph & Swana Gates and Oak 

Royal Properties, LLC. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on January 10, 2017, found the proposed rezoning consistent with the 

Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code; and recommended a change of zoning from PO/I 

(Professional Office/Institutional) and AG (Agriculture) to Mixed Use – Employment Center, subject to the 

adoption of the associated large scale future land use amendment. 

 

The City Council, at its meeting on September 6, 2017, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2592 and 

held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on September 20, 2017. 

 

Adopt Ordinance No. 2592. 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

  

86



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
JOSEPH & SWANA GATES AND OAK ROYAL PROPERTIES, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 
 

ZONING REPORT 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Mixed Use Mixed-EC Emerson Park community 

East (County) Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) R-CE-2 Single-family residential 

South (City & 
County) 

“City” Office (max 0.3 FAR) &  
“County” Rural (0-1 du/ac)  

“City” OFF & 
“County” A-1 

Vacant & County water reclamation facility 

West (City) Residential High (0-15 du/ac) A-1 (ZIP) Single-family home 

 
LAND USE &  
TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: The subject property fronts and is accessed by a county minor arterial (Ocoee 

Apopka Road) and a collector roadway (Keene Road).  The proposed Mixed-
EC (Mixed Use – Employment Center) zoning district is consistent and 
compatible with the adjacent zoning classifications and uses within the 
surrounding area. Property to the north (the existing Emerson Park single-
family and townhome development) has the same Mixed-EC zoning 
classification. To the south, “City” zoned property has a PO/I zoning 
classification, with properties within unincorporated Orange County to the east 
are predominant single-family and rural sues. 

 
In addition, the proposed land use designation is consistent with the conceptual 
land use plan, development scenario and recommendations of the Ocoee 
Apopka Road Small Area Study, which was completed in 2014.  The Ocoee 
Apopka Rd SAS Conceptual Plan listed as Exhibit ‘A’ below shows the subject 
properties listed within the “New Market” character area, which is described 
in the final report as: 
 
“The New Market Zone represents the area in the vicinity of Emerson Park 
and the hospital. It is anticipated that this area will contain the highest degree 
of pedestrian connectivity.” In addition, the report indicates that one scenario 
for the New Market Area includes the placement of the core (Village Center) 
of the New Market Character area includes the subject property (as shown in 
Exhibit ‘B’ below). The finds of the report suggest this scenario may be the 
most suitable for the Village Center: 

 
“Scenario 1 shows the core area (Village Center) concentrated at the 
northeast corner of Ocoee-Apopka Road and Keene Road. This site was 
chosen as an ideal location for the Village Center because it is easily 
accessible from the existing and proposed residential neighborhoods to 
the east. 

 
COMPREHENSIVE  
PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed Mixed-EC zoning is consistent with the City’s Mixed Use (max 

0.60 FAR) Future Land Use designation and with the character of the 
surrounding area and future proposed development. The Mixed-EC zoning 
classification is one of the acceptable zoning categories allowed within the 
Mixed Use Future Land Use designation.   Development Plans shall not exceed 
the density allowed in the adopted Future Land Use Designation. 

ZONING DISTRICT 
REQUIREMENTS: All uses and site development requirements will be subject to Sec. 02.02.20 or 

Sec. 02.02.18 of the Apopka Land Development Code.  87



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
JOSEPH & SWANA GATES AND OAK ROYAL PROPERTIES, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 
 

Joseph & Swana Gates, Oak Royal Properties, LLC 
Property Owner 
22.3 +/- Acres 

Proposed Large Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 
From:  Office (max. 0.3 FAR) & Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) 

To: Mixed Use  

Parcel ID #s:  20-21-28-0000-00-021; -024; -025 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SUBJECT 

PROPERTIES 

88



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
JOSEPH & SWANA GATES AND OAK ROYAL PROPERTIES, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 
 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

  

89



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
JOSEPH & SWANA GATES AND OAK ROYAL PROPERTIES, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 
 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 90



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
JOSEPH & SWANA GATES AND OAK ROYAL PROPERTIES, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 
 

 

 

EXISTING USES 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 91



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
JOSEPH & SWANA GATES AND OAK ROYAL PROPERTIES, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 9 
 

 

 

OCOEE APOPKA ROAD SMALL AREA STUDY 

CONCEPTUAL LAND USE MAP #1 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 92



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
JOSEPH & SWANA GATES AND OAK ROYAL PROPERTIES, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 10 
 

 

OCOEE APOPKA ROAD SMALL AREA STUDY 

CONCEPTUAL LAND USE MAP #1 
 

  

93



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
JOSEPH & SWANA GATES AND OAK ROYAL PROPERTIES, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 11 
 

OCOEE APOPKA ROAD SMALL AREA STUDY 

SCENARIO MAP #2 
 

 

94



ORDINANCE NO. 2592 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA CHANGING THE 
ZONING FROM PROFESSIONAL OFFICE\INSTITUTIONAL (PO/I) AND FROM 
AGRICULTURE (AG) TO MIXED-EC (MIXED -EMPLOYMENT CENTER)   FOR 
CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED EAST OF OCOEE 
APOPKA ROAD AND NORTH OF KEENE ROAD, COMPRISING 22.4 ACRES, 
MORE OR LESS AND OWNED BY JOSEPH AND SWANA GATES & OAK 
ROYAL PROPERTIES, LLC; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, 
AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
 
 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest of the public 
health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Joseph & Swana Gates and Oak Royal Properties LLC has requested a change in 

zoning on said property as identified in Section I of this ordinance; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed Mixed-EC zoning has been found to be consistent with the City of Apopka 
Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land Development Code. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, as 
follows: 
 
 Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being situated in the City 
of Apopka, Florida, is hereby PO/I, as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code.  
 
 Legal Description: 
 

BEG 786.7 FT N & 479.15 FT W OF S1/4 COR OF SEC RUN W 1106.75 FT TO ST RD R/W NLY 
ALONG R/W TO A PT 246.47 FT S OF N LINE OF S1/2 OF SW1/4 RUN E 1046.71 FT S 237.23 FT 
TO POB IN SEC 20-21-28; and BEG 713.24 FT W OF E LINE OF SE1/4 OF SW1/4 ON NLY R/W OF 
KEENE RD RUN N 770 FT W 339.2 FT S 770 FT E 339.2 FT TO POB IN SEC 20-21-28; and BEG 
1052.44 FT W & 30 FT N OF SE COR OF SW1/4 RUN N 770 FT W 536.8 FT TO ELY R/W OF ST 
RD 437 SWLY ALONG SAID R/W 797 FT E 630.8 FT TO POB IN SEC 20-21-28 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Parcel ID No: 20-21-28-0000-00-021; 20-21-28-0000-00-024; 20-21-28-0000-00-025 

Contains: 22.4 +/- Acres 

  

95



ORDINANCE NO. 2592 

PAGE 2 
 

 

Section II.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the City of 

Apopka, Florida. 

 

 Section III.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is hereby 

authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, Florida, to 

include said designation.   

 

 Section IV. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves to be 

invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, force or effect 

of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

 

 Section V.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.   

 

 Section VI.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon adoption. 

 
 

                       
 
 

       _____________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: August 25, 2017 
    September 8, 2017 

READ FIRST TIME:  September 6, 2017 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
September 20, 2017 

96



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

8. Ordinance No. 2593 – Second Reading – Annex. – 425 & 431 W Station Street – Legislative   
 David Moon 

  

97



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: September 20, 2017 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Exhibit “A” – Summary 

X OTHER: Ordinance   Ordinance No. 2593 

    Vicinity Map 
  
SUBJECT:  2017 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 3 

   

REQUEST:  SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2593 – LOOMIS FUNERAL 

HOME, INC. 
  
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNER:  Loomis Funeral Home, Inc. 

 

LOCATION:  423, 425 & 431 Station Street 

 

LAND USE:  Refer to Exhibit “A” 

 

EXISTING USE: Refer to Exhibit “A” 

 

TRACT SIZE:  0.76 +/- acre 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: The proposed annexation shall be on the basis of the existing County 
Future Land Use and Zoning Designations.  The assignment of a City Future Land Use and Zoning 
designation will occur at a later date, and through action by the City Council. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 15 days prior to 
the first reading of any annexation ordinance.  The City provided notification to the County on July 18, 
2017. 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
August 25, 2017 
September 8, 2017 
September 29, 2017 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
September 6, 2017 (1:30 pm) - City Council 1st Reading 
September 20, 2017 (7:00 pm) - City Council 2nd Reading and Adoption 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
 

 
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 
 

98



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 3 
PAGE 2 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the annexation for properties owned by 
Loomis Funeral Home, Inc. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on September 6, 2017, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2593, 
and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on September 20, 2017. 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2593. 
 

99



1 

 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

CITY OF APOPKA 
2017 ANNEXATION CYCLE # 3 

TOTAL ACRES:  27.79 
 

ORD. 

NO. 

ITEM 

NO. 
OWNER’S NAME LOCATION PARCEL NUMBER 

ACRES 

+/- 

EXISTING 

USE 

FUTURE LAND USE 

(COUNTY) 

2593 1 
 

Loomis Funeral 
Homes 

423, 425 & 431 West Station 
Street 

09-21-28-7544-02-450 
09-21-28-7544-02-471 
09-21-28-7544-02-490 

0.41 Vacant 
COMMERCIAL 
MAX 3.0 FAR 

2594 2 
Curtis & Karen 

Pumphrey 

 
251 West Lester Road 

 
28-20-28-0000-00-084 

 
5.21 

 
Warehouse 

LOW DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL 

4DU/ACRE 

2595 3 

 
A.D. Raulerson 

A.D. Raulerson, Jr. 
 

213 West Lester Road 
2122 Rock Springs Road 

28-20-28-0000-00-040 
28-20-28-0000-00-077 

20.29 
Vacant 

Nursery  

LOW DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL 

4DU/ACRE 

2596 4 Michael Tyszko 3001 West Kelly Park Road 12-20-27-0000-00-027 0.56 
Single-Family 

Residence 
RURAL  

1 DU/10 AC 

2597 5 
Michael J. McKernan 
Carolann McKernan 

3013 West Kelly Park Road 12-20-27-0000-00-056 0.69 
Single-Family 

Residence 
RURAL  

1 DU/10 AC 

2598 6 

Gracie J. Gillis 
Glenda M. Griffen 

Trudy R. Maer 
Rodney N. Gillis 

5012 Plymouth Sorrento Road 12-20-27-0000-00-054 0.63 
Manufactered 

Home 
RURAL 

1 DU/10 AC 

 

100



ORDINANCE NO. 2593 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 
ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 
TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 
LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
OWNED BY LOOMIS FUNERAL HOME, INC. LOCATED AT 425 & 431 
STATION STREET; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY 
CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS,  Loomis Funeral Home, Inc., owner thereof, has petitioned the City Council 

of the City of Apopka, Florida, to annex the properties located at 423, 425 and 431 Station Street; 

and  

 

 WHEREAS, Florida Statute 171.044 of the General Laws of Florida provide that a 

municipal corporation may annex property into its corporate limits upon voluntary petition of the 

owners, by passing and adopting a non-emergency ordinance to annex said property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida is desirous of annexing and 

redefining the boundaries of the municipality to include the subject property pursuant to Florida 

Statute 171.044. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows: 

 

 SECTION I:  That the following described properties, being situated in Orange County, 

Florida, totaling 0.41 +/- acre, and graphically depicted by the attached Exhibit "A”, is hereby 

annexed into the City of Apopka, Florida, pursuant to the voluntary annexation provisions of 

Chapter 171.044, Florida Statutes, and other applicable laws: 

 

Legal Descriptions: 

 
ROBINSON & SAMUELS ADD TO APOPKA J/80 LOTS 49 & 50 BLK B (LESS S 15 FT 

FOR R/W) (Parcel 09-21-28-7544-02-490; 423 W. Station Street) containing 0.14 +/- acres; 

AND 
 
ROBINSON & SAMUELS ADD TO APOPKA J/80 LOTS 47 & 48 (LESS N 10 FT & LESS 

S 15 FT FOR R/W) BLK B (Parcel 09-21-28-7544-02-471, 425 W. Station Street)  
Containing 0.13 +/- acres; AND 
 
ROBINSON & SAMUELS ADD TO APOPKA J/80 LOTS 45 & 46 BLK B (LESS S 15 FT 

FOR R/W) 
(Parcel 09-21-28-7544-02-450, 431 W. Station Street) Containing 0.14 +/- acres. 

 

 SECTION II:  That the corporate territorial limits of the City of Apopka, Florida, are 

hereby redefined to include said land herein described and annexed.

 

 

 

 

101



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2593 

PAGE 2  

 

SECTION III:  That the City Council will designate the land use classification and zoning 

category of these annexed lands in accordance with applicable City ordinances and State laws. 

 

 SECTION IV: That the land herein described and future inhabitants of the land herein 

described shall be liable for all debts and obligations and be subject to all species of taxation, laws, 

ordinances and regulations of the City. 

 

SECTION V:  That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance 

proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force, or effect of any other section or portion of a section or subsection or part of this 

ordinance. 

 

 SECTION VI:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed. 

 

 SECTION VII: That this ordinance shall take effect upon passage and adoption, thereafter 

the City Clerk is hereby directed to file this ordinance with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in and 

for Orange County, Florida; the Orange County Property Appraiser; and the Department of State 

of the State of Florida.  
 
 

            

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: August 25, 2017, September 8, 2017 

 

 
READ FIRST TIME: September 6, 2017 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     September 20, 2017 
 
 
  
Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

102



 

  

ANNEXATION 

Loomis Funeral Home, Inc. 

423, 425 & 431 Station Street 

          

           Exhibit “A”                

Parcel ID: 09-21-28-7544-02-450 
09-21-28-7544-02-471 
09-21-28-7544-02-490 

               

 Total Acres: 0.41 +/-      

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

103



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

9. Ordinance No. 2594 – Second Reading – Annex. – 251 W Lester Road – Legislative     
 David Moon 

  

104



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: September 20, 2017 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Exhibit “A” – Summary 

X OTHER: Ordinance   Ordinance No. 2594 

    Vicinity Map 
  
SUBJECT:  2017 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 3 

   

REQUEST:  SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2594 – CURTIS AND KAREN 

PUMPHREY, INC. 
  
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNER:  Curtis and Karen Pumphrey 

 

LOCATION:  251 Lester Road 

 

LAND USE:  Refer to Exhibit “A” 

 

EXISTING USE: Refer to Exhibit “A” 

 

TRACT SIZE:  5.21 +/- acre 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: The proposed annexation shall be on the basis of the existing County 
Future Land Use and Zoning Designations.  The assignment of a City Future Land Use and Zoning 
designation will occur at a later date, and through action by the City Council. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 15 days prior to 
the first reading of any annexation ordinance.  The City provided notification to the County on July 18, 
2017 and August 15, 2017. 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
August 25, 2017 
September 8, 2017 
September 29, 2017 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
September 6, 2017 (1:30 pm) - City Council 1st Reading 
September 20, 2017 (7:00 pm) - City Council 2nd Reading and Adoption 
 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
 

 
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

105



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 3 
PAGE 2 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the annexation for properties owned by 
Curtis and Karen Pumphrey. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on September 6, 2017, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2594, 
and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on September 20, 2017. 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2594. 
 
 
 
 

106



1 

 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

CITY OF APOPKA 
2017 ANNEXATION CYCLE # 3 

TOTAL ACRES:  27.79 
 

ORD. 

NO. 

ITEM 

NO. 
OWNER’S NAME LOCATION PARCEL NUMBER 

ACRES 

+/- 

EXISTING 

USE 

FUTURE LAND USE 

(COUNTY) 

2593 
1 
 

Loomis Funeral 
Homes 

423, 425 & 431 West Station 
Street 

09-21-28-7544-02-450 
09-21-28-7544-02-471 
09-21-28-7544-02-490 

0.41 Vacant 
COMMERCIAL 
MAX 3.0 FAR 

2594 2 
Curtis & Karen 

Pumphrey 

 
251 West Lester Road 

 
28-20-28-0000-00-084 

 
5.21 

 
Warehouse 

LOW DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL 

4DU/ACRE 

2595 3 

 
A.D. Raulerson 

A.D. Raulerson, Jr. 
 

213 West Lester Road 
2122 Rock Springs Road 

28-20-28-0000-00-040 
28-20-28-0000-00-077 

20.29 
Vacant 

Nursery  

LOW DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL 

4DU/ACRE 

2596 4 Michael Tyszko 3001 West Kelly Park Road 12-20-27-0000-00-027 0.56 
Single-Family 

Residence 
RURAL  

1 DU/10 AC 

2597 5 
Michael J. McKernan 
Carolann McKernan 

3013 West Kelly Park Road 12-20-27-0000-00-056 0.69 
Single-Family 

Residence 
RURAL  

1 DU/10 AC 

2598 6 

Gracie J. Gillis 
Glenda M. Griffin 

Trudy R. Maerz 
Rodney N. Gillis 

5012 Plymouth Sorrento Road 12-20-27-0000-00-054 0.63 
Manufactered 

Home 
RURAL 

1 DU/10 AC 

 

107



ORDINANCE NO. 2594 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 
ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 
TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 
LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
OWNED BY CURTIS AND KAREN PUMPHREY LOCATED AT 251 
WEST LESTER ROAD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY 
CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS,  Curtis and Karen Pumphrey, owner thereof, has petitioned the City Council 

of the City of Apopka, Florida, to annex the properties located at 251 West Lester Road; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Florida Statute 171.044 of the General Laws of Florida provide that a 

municipal corporation may annex property into its corporate limits upon voluntary petition of the 

owners, by passing and adopting a non-emergency ordinance to annex said property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida is desirous of annexing and 

redefining the boundaries of the municipality to include the subject property pursuant to Florida 

Statute 171.044. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows: 

 

 SECTION I:  That the following described properties, being situated in Orange County, 

Florida, totaling 5.21 +/- acre, and graphically depicted by the attached Exhibit "A”, is hereby 

annexed into the City of Apopka, Florida, pursuant to the voluntary annexation provisions of 

Chapter 171.044, Florida Statutes, and other applicable laws: 

 

Legal Descriptions: 

 

BEG SE CORNER OF E1/2 OF SW1/4 OF SE1/4, RUN S87-59-49W 15 FT, TH N01-

46-12W 586.62 FT, TH S87-59-49W 98.51 FT M/L, TH N01-46-12W 238 FT, TH N87-

59-49E 35.35 FT, TH N01-49-26W 159.83 FT, TH N88-03-21W 595.03 FT M/L TO 

WEST LINE OF THE EAST 1/2 OF THE SW 1/4 OF THE SE 1/4, TH N01-46-37W 

345 FT M/L TO NORTH LINE OF E 1/2 OF OF SW 1/4 OF SE 1/4, TH E 609.75 FT 

M/L TO NW COR OF LANDS DESC IN 2748/1802, TH S01-49-26E 519.81 FT TO 

NORTH LINE OF WELL LOT DESC IN 3141/1427, TH S87-59-49W 34.88 FT TO 

NW COR OF WELL LOT, TH S01-46-12E 208 FT TO SW COR OF WELL LOT, TH 

N87-59-49E 98.51 FT M/L TO EAST LINE OF THE E 1/2 OF THE SW 1/4 OF THE 

SE 1/4, TH S01-46-12E 601.62 FT TO POB (LESS S 30 FT FOR RD) OF SEC 28-20-28 

SEE 3513/96 

 

Containing 5.21 +/- acres 

 

 SECTION II:  That the corporate territorial limits of the City of Apopka, Florida, are 

hereby redefined to include said land herein described and annexed.

 

 

108



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2594 

PAGE 2  

 

SECTION III:  That the City Council will designate the land use classification and zoning  

category of these annexed lands in accordance with applicable City ordinances and State laws. 

 

 SECTION IV: That the land herein described and future inhabitants of the land herein 

described shall be liable for all debts and obligations and be subject to all species of taxation, laws, 

ordinances and regulations of the City. 

 

SECTION V:  That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance 

proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force, or effect of any other section or portion of a section or subsection or part of this 

ordinance. 

 

 SECTION VI:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed. 

 

 SECTION VII: That this ordinance shall take effect upon passage and adoption, thereafter 

the City Clerk is hereby directed to file this ordinance with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in and 

for Orange County, Florida; the Orange County Property Appraiser; and the Department of State 

of the State of Florida.  
 
 

            

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: August 25, 2017, September 8, 2017 

 

 
READ FIRST TIME: September 6, 2017 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     September 20, 2017 
 
 
  
Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

109



 

ANNEXATION  
Curtis and Karen Pumphrey 

251 West Lester Road 
             
     

Exhibit “A”                  
Ord. # 2594 
Parcel ID:  28-20-28-0000-00-084 

 
Total Acres: 5.21 +/-      
 

 

 
 

 

 

110



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

10. Ordinance No. 2595 – Second Reading – Annex. – 213 W. Lester Road & 2122 Rock Springs Road - Legislative 
 David Moon 

  

111



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: September 20, 2017 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Exhibit “A” – Summary 

X OTHER: Ordinance   Ordinance No. 2595 

    Vicinity Map 
  
SUBJECT:  2017 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 3 

   

REQUEST:  SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2595 – A.D. RAULERSON AND 

A.D. RAULERSON, JR. AND HOLD OVER FOR SECOND READING & 

ADOPTION. 
  
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNER:  A.D. Raulerson and A.D. Raulerson, Jr. 

 

LOCATION:  213 Lester Road and 2122 Rock Springs Road 

 

LAND USE:  Refer to Exhibit “A” 

 

EXISTING USE: Refer to Exhibit “A” 

 

TRACT SIZE:  20.29 +/- acres 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: The proposed annexation shall be on the basis of the existing County 
Future Land Use and Zoning Designations.  The assignment of a City Future Land Use and Zoning 
designation will occur at a later date, and through action by the City Council. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 15 days prior to 
the first reading of any annexation ordinance.  The City provided notification to the County on July 18, 
2017 and August 15, 2018. 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
August 25, 2017 
September 8, 2017 
September 29, 2017 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
September 6, 2017 (1:30 pm) - City Council 1st Reading 
September 20, 2017 (7:00 pm) - City Council 2nd Reading and Adoption 
 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
 

 
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

112



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 3 
PAGE 2 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the annexation for properties owned by 
A.D. Raulerson and A.D. Raulerson, Jr. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on September 6, 2017, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2595, 
and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on September 20, 2017. 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2595. 
 

113



1 

 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

CITY OF APOPKA 
2017 ANNEXATION CYCLE # 3 

TOTAL ACRES:  27.79 
 

ORD. 

NO. 

ITEM 

NO. 
OWNER’S NAME LOCATION PARCEL NUMBER 

ACRES 

+/- 

EXISTING 

USE 

FUTURE LAND USE 

(COUNTY) 

2593 
1 
 

Loomis Funeral 
Homes 

423, 425 & 431 West Station 
Street 

09-21-28-7544-02-450 
09-21-28-7544-02-471 
09-21-28-7544-02-490 

0.41 Vacant 
COMMERCIAL 
MAX 3.0 FAR 

2594 2 
Curtis & Karen 

Pumphrey 

 
251 West Lester Road 

 
28-20-28-0000-00-084 

 
5.21 

 
Warehouse 

LOW DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL 

4DU/ACRE 

2595 3 

 
A.D. Raulerson 

A.D. Raulerson, Jr. 
 

213 West Lester Road 
2122 Rock Springs Road 

28-20-28-0000-00-040 
28-20-28-0000-00-077 

20.29 
Vacant 

Nursery  

LOW DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL 

4DU/ACRE 

2596 4 Michael Tyszko 3001 West Kelly Park Road 12-20-27-0000-00-027 0.56 
Single-Family 

Residence 
RURAL  

1 DU/10 AC 

2597 5 
Michael J. McKernan 
Carolann McKernan 

3013 West Kelly Park Road 12-20-27-0000-00-056 0.69 
Single-Family 

Residence 
RURAL  

1 DU/10 AC 

2598 6 

Gracie J. Gillis 
Glenda M. Griffen 

Trudy R. Maer 
Rodney N. Gillis 

5012 Plymouth Sorrento Road 12-20-27-0000-00-054 0.63 
Manufactered 

Home 
RURAL 

1 DU/10 AC 

 

114



ORDINANCE NO. 2595 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 
ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 
TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 
LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
OWNED BY A.D. RAULERSON AND A.D. RAULERSON, JR. LOCATED 
AT 213 WEST LESTER ROAD AND 2122 ROCK SPRINGS ROAD; 
PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, 
SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS,  A.D. Raulerson and A.D. Raulerson, Jr., owners thereof, has petitioned the 

City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, to annex the properties located at 213 West Lester 

Road and 2122 Rock Springs Road; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Florida Statute 171.044 of the General Laws of Florida provide that a 

municipal corporation may annex property into its corporate limits upon voluntary petition of the 

owners, by passing and adopting a non-emergency ordinance to annex said property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida is desirous of annexing and 

redefining the boundaries of the municipality to include the subject property pursuant to Florida 

Statute 171.044. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows: 

 

 SECTION I:  That the following described properties, being situated in Orange County, 

Florida, totaling 20.29 +/- acres, and graphically depicted by the attached Exhibit "A”, is hereby 

annexed into the City of Apopka, Florida, pursuant to the voluntary annexation provisions of 

Chapter 171.044, Florida Statutes, and other applicable laws: 

 

Legal Descriptions: 

 

COMM AT SE COR OF SEC, TH RUN S87-59-49W 600 FT TO POB; TH CONT S87-

59-49W 630.44 FT, TH N01-41-41W 601.62 FT TO SOUTH LINE OF WELL LOT, TH 

N87-59-49E 38.5 FT TO SE COR OF WELL LOT, TH N01-41-41W 148.40 FT, TH N87-

59-45E 593.99 FT, TH S01-45-16E 750 FT TO POB (LESS S 30 FT FOR RD R/W) IN 

SEC 28-20-28 

Containing 10.3 +/- acres; AND 

 

COMM AT SE COR OF SEC, TH RUN N01-45-16W 750 FT, TH S87-59-45W 50 FT TO 

POB; TH CONT S87-59-45WW 1143.99 FT TO EAST LINE OF WELL LOT, TH N02-

00-11W 59.60 FT, TH S87-59-49W 173.12 FT, TH N01-49-26WW 519.15 FT TO 

NORTH LINE OF S 1/2 OF SE 1/4, TH N88-02-24E 714.27 FT TO NE COR OF W 1/2 

OF SE 1/4 OF SE 1/4, TH S01-49-16E 524 FT, TH N88-02-24E 603.10 FT TO EAST 

R/W LINE, TH S01-45-16E 54.04 FT TO POB (LESS THAT PART PREVIOUSLY 

SOLD PER DB 829/86) IN SEC 28-20-28 

Containing 9.99 +/- acres 

 

115



  

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2595 

PAGE 2  

 

 

SECTION II:  That the corporate territorial limits of the City of Apopka, Florida, are 

hereby redefined to include said land herein described and annexed.

 

SECTION III:  That the City Council will designate the land use classification and zoning 

category of these annexed lands in accordance with applicable City ordinances and State laws. 

 

 SECTION IV: That the land herein described and future inhabitants of the land herein 

described shall be liable for all debts and obligations and be subject to all species of taxation, laws, 

ordinances and regulations of the City. 

 

SECTION V:  That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance 

proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force, or effect of any other section or portion of a section or subsection or part of this 

ordinance. 

 

 SECTION VI:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed. 

 

 SECTION VII: That this ordinance shall take effect upon passage and adoption, thereafter 

the City Clerk is hereby directed to file this ordinance with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in and 

for Orange County, Florida; the Orange County Property Appraiser; and the Department of State 

of the State of Florida.  
 
 

            

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: August 25, 2017; September 9, 2017 

 

 
READ FIRST TIME: September 6, 2017 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     September 20, 2017 
 
 
  
Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

116



 

ANNEXATION 
A.D. Raulerson and A.D. Raulerson, Jr. 

      213 West Lester Road & 2122 Rock Springs Road   
       

Exhibit “A” 
Ord. No. 2595                
Parcel ID:  28-20-28-0000-00-040 

    28-20-28-0000-00-077 
             
 Total Acres: 20.29  +/-      

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

117



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

11. Ordinance No. 2596 – Second Reading – Annex. – 3001 W. Kelly Park Road – Legislative    David 
Moon 

  

118



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: September 20, 2017 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Exhibit “A” – Summary 

X OTHER: Ordinance   Ordinance No. 2596 

    Vicinity Map 
  
SUBJECT:  2017 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 3 

   

REQUEST:  SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2596 – MICHAEL TYSZKO 
  
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNER:  Michael Tyszko 

 

LOCATION:  3001 W Kelly Park Rd 

 

LAND USE:  Refer to Exhibit “A”.  

 

EXISTING USE: Refer to Exhibit “A” 

 

TRACT SIZE:  0.56 +/- acres 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: The proposed annexation shall be on the basis of the existing County 
Future Land Use and Zoning Designations.  The assignment of a City Future Land Use and Zoning 
designation will occur at a later date, and through action by the City Council. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 15 days prior to 
the first reading of any annexation ordinance.  The City provided notification to the County on July 18, 
2017 AND August 15, 2017. 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
August 25, 2017 
September 8, 2017 
September 29, 2017 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
September 6, 2017 (1:30 pm) - City Council 1st Reading 
September 20, 2017 (7:00 pm) - City Council 2nd Reading and Adoption 
 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
 

 
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 
 119



CITY COUNCIL –SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 3 
PAGE 2 

 
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the annexation for properties owned by 
Michael Tyszko. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on September 6, 2017, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2596, 
and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on September 20, 2017. 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2596. 
 

120



1 

 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

CITY OF APOPKA 
2017 ANNEXATION CYCLE # 3 

TOTAL ACRES:  27.79 
 

ORD. 

NO. 

ITEM 

NO. 
OWNER’S NAME LOCATION PARCEL NUMBER 

ACRES 

+/- 

EXISTING 

USE 

FUTURE LAND USE 

(COUNTY) 

2593 
1 
 

Loomis Funeral 
Homes 

423, 425 & 431 West Station 
Street 

09-21-28-7544-02-450 
09-21-28-7544-02-471 
09-21-28-7544-02-490 

0.41 Vacant 
COMMERCIAL 
MAX 3.0 FAR 

2594 2 
Curtis & Karen 

Pumphrey 

 
251 West Lester Road 

 
28-20-28-0000-00-084 

 
5.21 

 
Warehouse 

LOW DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL 

4DU/ACRE 

2595 3 

 
A.D. Raulerson 

A.D. Raulerson, Jr. 
 

213 West Lester Road 
2122 Rock Springs Road 

28-20-28-0000-00-040 
28-20-28-0000-00-077 

20.29 
Vacant 

Nursery  

LOW DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL 

4DU/ACRE 

2596 4 Michael Tyszko 3001 West Kelly Park Road 12-20-27-0000-00-027 0.56 
Single-Family 

Residence 
RURAL  

1 DU/10 AC 

2597 5 
Michael J. McKernan 
Carolann McKernan 

3013 West Kelly Park Road 12-20-27-0000-00-056 0.69 
Single-Family 

Residence 
RURAL  

1 DU/10 AC 

2598 6 

Gracie J. Gillis 
Glenda M. Griffin 

Trudy R. Maerz 
Rodney N. Gillis 

5012 Plymouth Sorrento Road 12-20-27-0000-00-054 0.63 
Manufacture

d Home 
RURAL 

1 DU/10 AC 

 

121



ORDINANCE NO. 2596 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 
ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 
TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 
LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
OWNED BY MICHAEL TYSZKO. LOCATED AT 3001 WEST KELLY 
PARK ROAD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, 
SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS,  Michael Tyszko., owner thereof, has petitioned the City Council of the City 

of Apopka, Florida, to annex the properties located at 3001 West Kelly Park Road; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Florida Statute 171.044 of the General Laws of Florida provide that a 

municipal corporation may annex property into its corporate limits upon voluntary petition of the 

owners, by passing and adopting a non-emergency ordinance to annex said property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida is desirous of annexing and 

redefining the boundaries of the municipality to include the subject property pursuant to Florida 

Statute 171.044. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows: 

 

 SECTION I:  That the following described properties, being situated in Orange County, 

Florida, totaling 0.56 +/- acres, and graphically depicted by the attached Exhibit "A”, is hereby 

annexed into the City of Apopka, Florida, pursuant to the voluntary annexation provisions of 

Chapter 171.044, Florida Statutes, and other applicable laws: 

 

Legal Description: 

 
SE1/4 OF SE1/4 OF SE1/4 OF SE1/4 OF SEC 12-20-27 (LESS N 100 FT & LESS W 150 FT) 

& (LESS RD R/W PER DB 398/188) & (LESS COMM AT SE COR OF SE1/4 RUN N00-09-

57E 231.24 FT TO INTERSECTION WITH S LINE OF N 100 FT OF SE1/4 OF SE1/4 OF 

SE1/4 OF SE1/4 TH S88-26-25W TO W R/W LINE OF PLYMOUTH SORRENTO RD ALSO 

BEING POB TH S00-05-41W 157.14 FT TO PT ON CURV CONCV NWLY HAVING A 

RAD OF 25 FT A CHORD BEARING OF S44-13-30W A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 88-15-38 

& AN ARC DIST OF 38.51 FT TH S88-21-18W 32.79 FT TH N33-28-09E 38.20 FT TH N00-

05-41E 150.18 FT TO PT OF AFORESAID S LINE OF N 100 FT SE1/4 OF SE1/4 OF SE1/4 

OF SE1/4 TH N88-26-25E 36.02 FT TO POB) 
 

Containing 0.56 +/- acres 

Parcel No. 12-20-27-0000-00-027 

  

SECTION II:  That the corporate territorial limits of the City of Apopka, Florida, are 

hereby redefined to include said land herein described and annexed.

 

SECTION III:  That the City Council will designate the land use classification and zoning 

category of these annexed lands in accordance with applicable City ordinances and State laws. 

 

122



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2596 

PAGE 2  

 

SECTION IV: That the land herein described and future inhabitants of the land herein 

described shall be liable for all debts and obligations and be subject to all species of taxation, laws, 

ordinances and regulations of the City. 

 

SECTION V:  That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance 

proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force, or effect of any other section or portion of a section or subsection or part of this 

ordinance. 

 

 SECTION VI:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed. 

 

 SECTION VII: That this ordinance shall take effect upon passage and adoption, thereafter 

the City Clerk is hereby directed to file this ordinance with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in and 

for Orange County, Florida; the Orange County Property Appraiser; and the Department of State 

of the State of Florida.  
 
            

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

__________________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: August 25, 2017; September 9, 2017 

 

 
READ FIRST TIME: September 6, 2017 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     September 20, 2017 
 
 
  
Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

123



 

ANNEXATION 
Michael Tyszko 

               
      

 Exhibit “A”            

Parcel ID: 12-20-27-0000-00-027 
         

 Total Acres: 0.56 +/-      

 

 

  

124



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

12. Ordinance No. 2597 – Second Reading – Annex. – 3013 W. Kelly Park Road – Legislative    David 
Moon  

  

125



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: September 20, 2017 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Exhibit “A” – Summary 

X OTHER: Ordinance   Ordinance No. 2597 

    Vicinity Map 
  
SUBJECT:  2017 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 3 

   

REQUEST:  SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2597 – MICHAEL AND CAROL 

ANN MCKERNAN 
  
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNER:  Michael and Carol Ann McKernan 

 

LOCATION:  3013 W Kelly Park Rd 

 

LAND USE:  Refer to Exhibit “A”.  

 

EXISTING USE: Refer to Exhibit “A” 

 

TRACT SIZE:  0.69 +/- acres 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: The proposed annexation shall be on the basis of the existing County 
Future Land Use and Zoning Designations.  The assignment of a City Future Land Use and Zoning 
designation will occur at a later date, and through action by the City Council. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 15 days prior to 
the first reading of any annexation ordinance.  The City provided notification to the County on July 18, 
2017 and August 15, 2017. 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
August 25, 2017 
September 8, 2017 
September 29, 2017 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
September 6, 2017 (1:30 pm) - City Council 1st Reading 
September 20, 2017 (7:00 pm) - City Council 2nd Reading and Adoption 
 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
 

 
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

126



CITY COUNCIL –SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 3 
PAGE 2 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the annexation for properties owned by 
Michael and Carol Ann McKernan. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on September 6, 2017, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2597, 
and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on September 20, 2017. 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2597. 
 

127



1 

 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

CITY OF APOPKA 
2017 ANNEXATION CYCLE # 3 

TOTAL ACRES:  27.79 
 

ORD. 

NO. 

ITEM 

NO. 
OWNER’S NAME LOCATION PARCEL NUMBER 

ACRES 

+/- 

EXISTING 

USE 

FUTURE LAND USE 

(COUNTY) 

2593 
1 
 

Loomis Funeral 
Homes 

423, 425 & 431 West Station 
Street 

09-21-28-7544-02-450 
09-21-28-7544-02-471 
09-21-28-7544-02-490 

0.41 Vacant 
COMMERCIAL 
MAX 3.0 FAR 

2594 2 
Curtis & Karen 

Pumphrey 

 
251 West Lester Road 

 
28-20-28-0000-00-084 

 
5.21 

 
Warehouse 

LOW DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL 

4DU/ACRE 

2595 3 

 
A.D. Raulerson 

A.D. Raulerson, Jr. 
 

213 West Lester Road 
2122 Rock Springs Road 

28-20-28-0000-00-040 
28-20-28-0000-00-077 

20.29 
Vacant 

Nursery  

LOW DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL 

4DU/ACRE 

2596 4 Michael Tyszko 3001 West Kelly Park Road 12-20-27-0000-00-027 0.56 
Single-Family 

Residence 
RURAL  

1 DU/10 AC 

2597 5 
Michael J. McKernan 
Carolann McKernan 

3013 West Kelly Park Road 12-20-27-0000-00-056 0.69 
Single-Family 

Residence 
RURAL  

1 DU/10 AC 

2598 6 

Gracie J. Gillis 
Glenda M. Griffen 

Trudy R. Maer 
Rodney N. Gillis 

5012 Plymouth Sorrento Road 12-20-27-0000-00-054 0.63 
Manufactered 

Home 
RURAL 

1 DU/10 AC 

 

128



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2597 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 
ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 
TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 
LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
OWNED BY MICHAEL AND CAROL ANN MCKERNAN; LOCATED AT 
3013 WEST KELLY PARK ROAD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO 
THE CITY CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, Michael And Carol Ann McKernan, owner thereof, has petitioned the City 

Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, to annex the properties located at 3013 West Kelly Park 

Road; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Florida Statute 171.044 of the General Laws of Florida provide that a 

municipal corporation may annex property into its corporate limits upon voluntary petition of the 

owners, by passing and adopting a non-emergency ordinance to annex said property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida is desirous of annexing and 

redefining the boundaries of the municipality to include the subject property pursuant to Florida 

Statute 171.044. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows: 

 

 SECTION I:  That the following described properties, being situated in Orange County, 

Florida, totaling 0.69 +/- acres, and graphically depicted by the attached Exhibit "A”, is hereby 

annexed into the City of Apopka, Florida, pursuant to the voluntary annexation provisions of 

Chapter 171.044, Florida Statutes, and other applicable laws: 

 

Legal Descriptions: 

 
S 189.2 FT OF E 50 FT OF W 150 FT OF SE1/4 OF SE1/4 OF SE1/4 OF SE1/4 AS MEAS N FROM 

RD R/W & S 189.20 T OF W 100 FT OF SE1/4 OF SE1/4 OF SE1/4 OF SE1/4 AS MEAS N FROM 

RD R/W ALL IN SEC 12-20-27 
 

Containing 0.69 +/- acres 
 Parcel No. 12-20-27-0000-00-056 

 

 SECTION II:  That the corporate territorial limits of the City of Apopka, Florida, are 

hereby redefined to include said land herein described and annexed 

 

SECTION III:  That the City Council will designate the land use classification and zoning 

category of these annexed lands in accordance with applicable City ordinances and State laws. 

 

 SECTION IV: That the land herein described and future inhabitants of the land herein 

described shall be liable for all debts and obligations and be subject to all species of taxation, laws, 

ordinances and regulations of the City. 

 
129



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2597 

PAGE 2  

 

SECTION V:  That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance 

proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force, or effect of any other section or portion of a section or subsection or part of this 

ordinance. 

 

 SECTION VI:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed. 

 

 SECTION VII: That this ordinance shall take effect upon passage and adoption, thereafter 

the City Clerk is hereby directed to file this ordinance with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in and 

for Orange County, Florida; the Orange County Property Appraiser; and the Department of State 

of the State of Florida.  
 
            

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: August 25, 2017; September 9, 2017 

 

 
READ FIRST TIME: September 6, 2017 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     September 20, 2017 
 
 
  
Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

130



 

ANNEXATION 
Michael and Carol Ann McKernan 

               
      

Exhibit “A”                
Parcel ID: 12-20-27-0000-00-056 

    
       

 Total Acres: 0.69 +/-      

 

 

  

131



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

13. Ordinance No. 2598 – Second Reading – Annex. – 5012 Plymouth Sorrento Road – Legislative   
 David Moon 

  

132



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: September 20, 2017 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Exhibit “A” – Summary 

X OTHER: Ordinance   Ordinance No. 2598 

    Vicinity Map 
  
SUBJECT:  2017 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 3 

   

REQUEST:  SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2598 – GRACIE J. GILLIS, 

GLENDA M. GRIFFEN, TRUDY R. MAER, RODNEY N. GILLIS 
  
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNER:  Gracie J. Gillis, Glenda M. Griffen, Trudy R. Maer, Rodney N. Gillis 

 

LOCATION:  5012 Plymouth Sorrento Road 

 

LAND USE:  Refer to Exhibit “A”.  

 

EXISTING USE: Refer to Exhibit “A” 

 

TRACT SIZE:  0.63 +/- acres 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: The proposed annexation shall be on the basis of the existing County 
Future Land Use and Zoning Designations.  The assignment of a City Future Land Use and Zoning 
designation will occur at a later date, and through action by the City Council. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 15 days prior to 
the first reading of any annexation ordinance.  The City provided notification to the County on July 18, 
2017 and August 15, 2017. 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
August 25, 2017 
September 8, 2017 
September 29, 2017 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
September 6, 2017 (1:30 pm) - City Council 1st Reading 
September 20, 2017 (7:00 pm) - City Council 2nd Reading and Adoption 
 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
 

 
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

133



CITY COUNCIL –SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
2017 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 3 
PAGE 2 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the annexation for properties owned by  
Gracie J. Gillis, Glenda M. Griffen, Trudy R. Maer, Rodney N. Gillis. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on September 6, 2017, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2598, 
and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on September 20, 2017. 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2598. 
 

134



1 

 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

CITY OF APOPKA 
2017 ANNEXATION CYCLE # 3 

TOTAL ACRES:  27.79 
 

ORD. 

NO. 

ITEM 

NO. 
OWNER’S NAME LOCATION PARCEL NUMBER 

ACRES 

+/- 

EXISTING 

USE 

FUTURE LAND USE 

(COUNTY) 

2593 
1 
 

Loomis Funeral 
Homes 

423, 425 & 431 West Station 
Street 

09-21-28-7544-02-450 
09-21-28-7544-02-471 
09-21-28-7544-02-490 

0.41 Vacant 
COMMERCIAL 
MAX 3.0 FAR 

2594 2 
Curtis & Karen 

Pumphrey 

 
251 West Lester Road 

 
28-20-28-0000-00-084 

 
5.21 

 
Warehouse 

LOW DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL 

4DU/ACRE 

2595 3 

 
A.D. Raulerson 

A.D. Raulerson, Jr. 
 

213 West Lester Road 
2122 Rock Springs Road 

28-20-28-0000-00-040 
28-20-28-0000-00-077 

20.29 
Vacant 

Nursery  

LOW DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL 

4DU/ACRE 

2596 4 Michael Tyszko 3001 West Kelly Park Road 12-20-27-0000-00-027 0.56 
Single-Family 

Residence 
RURAL  

1 DU/10 AC 

2597 5 
Michael J. McKernan 
Carolann McKernan 

3013 West Kelly Park Road 12-20-27-0000-00-056 0.69 
Single-Family 

Residence 
RURAL  

1 DU/10 AC 

2598 6 

Gracie J. Gillis 
Glenda M. Griffen 

Trudy R. Maer 
Rodney N. Gillis 

5012 Plymouth Sorrento Road 12-20-27-0000-00-054 0.63 
Manufactered 

Home 
RURAL 

1 DU/10 AC 

 

135



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2598 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 
ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 
TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 
LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
OWNED BY GRACIE J. GILLIS, GLENDA M. GRIFFEN, TRUDY R. 
MAER, RODNEY N. GILLIS; LOCATED AT 5012 PLYMOUTH 
SORRENTO ROAD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY 
CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 

 WHEREAS, Gracie J. Gillis, Glenda M. Griffen, Trudy R. Maer, Rodney N. Gillis, owner 

thereof, has petitioned the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, to annex the properties 

located at 5012 Plymouth Sorrento Road; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Florida Statute 171.044 of the General Laws of Florida provide that a 

municipal corporation may annex property into its corporate limits upon voluntary petition of the 

owners, by passing and adopting a non-emergency ordinance to annex said property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida is desirous of annexing and 

redefining the boundaries of the municipality to include the subject property pursuant to Florida 

Statute 171.044. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows: 

 

 SECTION I:  That the following described properties, being situated in Orange County, 

Florida, totaling 0.63 +/- acres, and graphically depicted by the attached Exhibit "A”, is hereby 

annexed into the City of Apopka, Florida, pursuant to the voluntary annexation provisions of 

Chapter 171.044, Florida Statutes, and other applicable laws: 

 

Legal Descriptions: 

 

N 100 FT OF SE1/4 OF SE1/4 OF SE1/4 OF SE1/4 OF SEC 12-20-27 (LESS RD 

R/W ON E) & (LESS COMM AT SE COR OF SE1/4 RUN N00-09-57E 231.24 

FT TH S88-26-25W TO W R/W LINE OF PLYMOUTH SORRENTO RD ALSO 

BEING POB TH CONT S88-26-25W 36.02 FT TH N00-05-41E 100.3 FT TO PT 

ON N LINE OF SE1/4 OF SE1/4 OF SE1/4 OF SE1/4 TH N88-26-25E 36.02 FT 

TO W R/W LINE OF PLYMOUTH SORRENTO RD TH S00-05-41W 100.3 FT 

TO POB) 

 

Containing 0.63 +/- acres 
 Parcel No. 12-20-27-0000-00-054 

 

 SECTION II:  That the corporate territorial limits of the City of Apopka, Florida, are 

hereby redefined to include said land herein described and annexed. 

 

SECTION III:  That the City Council will designate the land use classification and zoning 

category of these annexed lands in accordance with applicable City ordinances and State laws. 136



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2598 

PAGE 2  
  

SECTION IV: That the land herein described and future inhabitants of the land herein 

described shall be liable for all debts and obligations and be subject to all species of taxation, laws, 

ordinances and regulations of the City. 

 

SECTION V:  That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance 

proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force, or effect of any other section or portion of a section or subsection or part of this 

ordinance. 

 

 SECTION VI:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed. 

 

 SECTION VII: That this ordinance shall take effect upon passage and adoption, thereafter 

the City Clerk is hereby directed to file this ordinance with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in and 

for Orange County, Florida; the Orange County Property Appraiser; and the Department of State 

of the State of Florida.  
 
            

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

__________________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: August 25, 2017; September 9, 2017 

 

 
READ FIRST TIME: September 6, 2017 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     September 20, 2017 
 
 
  
Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

137



 

ANNEXATION 

Gracie J. Gillis, Glenda M. Griffen, Trudy R. Maer,  
Rodney N. Gillis, propety owners 

               
        Exhibit “A”                

        Parcel ID: 12-20-27-0000-00-054 
 

    
       

 Total Acres: 0.63 +/-      

 

 

  
138



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

14. Ordinance No. 2590 – First Reading – Large Scale – Future Land Use Amendment – Horne Trust – Legislative 
 David Moon 

  

139



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: September 20, 2017 
X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 
X OTHER:   Vicinity Map 
    Adjacent Zoning Map 
    Adjacent Uses Map 
    WPIVP1 Map 
    APIVP Characteristics 
    Comp Plan Objectives 
    JPA Amendment No. 2 

  
SUBJECT:    ORDINANCE NO. 2590 - COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – LARGE SCALE - FUTURE 

LAND USE AMENDMENT – JD AND KATHLEEN L. HORNE TRUST 

    

REQUEST:  ORDINANCE NO. 2590 - FIRST READING - COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
AMENDMENT - LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT –  JD 
AND KATHLEEN L HORNE TRUST  TO MIXED USE INTERCHANGE; AND 
AUTHORIZE TRANSMITTAL TO THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF 
ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY. 

  
SUMMARY:  
 
OWNER: JD and Kathleen L Horne Trust 
 
APPLICANT: Randy Hollihan, Brandon Partners 
 
LOCATION: Southeast corner of Plymouth-Sorrento Road and West Kelly Park Road 
 
PARCEL ID NUMBER: 13-20-27-0000-00-008 
 
EXISTING USE: Vacant\Single Family Home 
 
CURRENT ZONING:  “County” A-1 (ZIP) 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Commercial  
 
PROPOSED ZONING: Kelly Park Interchange Mixed Use with a Village Center Overlay District 
 
TRACT SIZE:   18.13 /- acres  
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 36 Residential Units 
    PROPOSED:   Min 7.5 u\a Max 25 u/a (453 d\u) or 1.0 FAR (789,742 sq. ft.) 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

                                                 
1 WPIVP – Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan 

140



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017  

JD AND KATHLEEN L HORNE TRUST– LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

PAGE 2 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Presently, the subject property does not have a “city” future land use 
designation or “city” zoning classification assigned. The applicant requests a future land use designation of 
“city” Mixed Use Interchange.  Presently, the applicant proposes a commercial retail center that includes a 
grocery store. 
 
Policy 20.9, Future Land Use Element of the Comprehensive Plan, requires that a Mixed Use Interchange future 

land use designation must be assigned to the property. 

 

The subject property is adjacent to the future Wekiva Parkway and the Wekiva Parkway/Kelly Park Road 

interchange, and is located within the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan Area.  Therefore, the property 

must comply with Objectives 18 – 20 and related policies within the Future Land Use Element of the 

Comprehensive Plan and the recently adopted Kelly Park Crossing Form-Based Code.  The applicant’s request 

is consistent with the Mixed Use Interchange future land use designation. 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed use of the property is compatible with the 

character of the surrounding area, is adjacent to the SR 429/Kelly Park Road interchange, and is consistent with 

the Mixed Use Interchange Land Use designation.  City planning staff supports the FLUM amendment given 

the consistency with the Comprehensive Plan policies listed below and the intent of the Wekiva Parkway 

Interchange Vision Plan a (see Land Use Analysis below).   Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed 

by the Future Land Use policies.  

 
Future Land Use Element 
 

1. Policy 3.1.r The primary intent of the Mixed Use land use category is to allow a mixture of residential, 
office, commercial, industrial, recreation, institutional and public facilities uses to serve the residential 
and non-residential needs of special areas of the City.  The mix of land uses may occur on a single parcel 
or multiple parcels … 
 
The designation of a mixed use category may occur only in certain areas of the city, including “land 
anticipated for inclusion within the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Land Use Plan…” These properties 
are within the 1-mile radius of the Wekiva Parkway Interchange depicted on the Wekiva Parkway 
Interchange Vision Plan Map located within the Future Land Use Element of the Apopka Comprehensive 
Plan. 
 

2. Policy 18.1 The City shall implement the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan, which guides the 
location of a range of uses, such as residential, office, commercial, industrial, recreation, public and 
institutional, at various densities and intensities around the proposed interchange. 
 
The proposed Mixed Use Future Land Use Designation allows for residential densities and non-
residential uses and intensities to implement the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan, consistent 
with Objective 18 and related policies.  
 

3. Policy 18.2 Prior to rezoning any property within a one-mile radius of the interchange Study Area, the 
City shall amend its LDC to incorporate development standards that will implement the Vision Plan. 
 
This future land use amendment does not include a corresponding proposed zoning category because the 
City has yet to adopt development standards or form-based code consistent with this policy.  Future 
densities/intensities and design character for the subject properties will be regulated at the time of 
rezoning once Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan design standards and form-based code are 
adopted.   
 

4. Policy 20.4 Prior to approving the first development plan with the Wekiva Parkway Interchange vision 
Plan Area, the City shall adopt the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Form-Based Cod establishing the design 
and development standards for the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan Area. 
 
 

141



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017  

JD AND KATHLEEN L HORNE TRUST– LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

PAGE 3 
 

The subject properties will be required to comply with the above policy should the development submit 
a development plan to ensure consistency with the Comprehensive Plan and Wekiva Parkway 
Interchange Vision Plan. 
 

5. Policy 20.9 Development within the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Plan Area shall be assigned a Mixed-
Use Interchange future land use designation and shall accomplish an overall mix of residential and non-
residential uses as outline in Policy 3.1.r.  Assignment of the Mixed-Use Interchange Land Use future 
land use designation shall require an amendment to the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
The applicant’s request for a Mixed Use future land use designation is consistent with this policy, as well 
as the intent of the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan area, which intends to concentrate a mixture 
of land uses with varying densities and intensities within one mile of the Wekiva Parkway Interchange. 
 

6. Policy 20.3.  The annexation, land use change, and subsequent development of lands located within the 
Wekiva Parkway Interchange Plan Area for Apopka and the Wekiva Interchange Land Use Plan Overlay 
for the County shall be consistent with the adopted Interlocal Agreement between Orange County and the 
City of Apopka regarding Wekiva Interchange Land Use Plan Overlay. 
 

7. Objective 19 and 20, and their associated policies.  See objectives and policies within the supporting 
information. 

 
Transportation Element 
 

1. Policy 4.2 The City of Apopka shall promote, through the implementation of programs such as mixed-

use land development, projects that support reduced travel demand, short trip lengths and balanced trip 

demand. 

 

The Mixed Use future land use designation allows for a mixture of land use types such as residential and 

non-residential, which promotes shorter trip lengths, concentrated development to reduce travel demand. 

 

2. Policy 3.1.r The primary intent of the Mixed Use land use category is to allow a mixture of residential, 

office, commercial, industrial, recreation, institutional uses and public facilities uses…This mix of land 

uses may occur on a single parcel or multiple parcels in the form of: a permitted single use; a vertical 

combination of different permitted uses; or a horizontal mix of different permitted uses. 

 

3. Policy 4.2 The City of Apopka shall promote, through the implementation of programs such as mixed-

use land development, projects that support reduced travel demand, shorter trip lengths and balanced 

trip demand. 

 

4. Objective 20 and associated Policies, Future Land Use Element.  Provided with the Supporting 

Information. 

 

VISIONING AND SPECIAL STUDIES:  The property is located within the boundaries of the Wekiva Parkway 

Interchange Vision Plan Area, making it subject to the Kelly Park Crossing Form-Based Code, Mixed- Use 

Interchange Zoning District and Village Center Overlay District.  A copy of the Wekiva Parkway Interchange 

Vision Plan is provided with the support material. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:   If residential development is proposed through a zoning or development 

application, an executed capacity enhancement agreement with Orange County Public Schools will be required 

prior to adoption of the future land use amendment. 

 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any 
public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on August 15, 2017.    Notification 
has already occurred through the Second Amendment to the Joint Planning Agreement with Orange County 

142



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017  

JD AND KATHLEEN L HORNE TRUST– LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

PAGE 4 
 
government.  The second amendment acknowledges that the City will assign a land use designation similar to 
the overlay district illustrated in the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

September 12, 2017 – Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

September 20, 2017 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading & Transmittal 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

August 25, 2017 – Public Notice and Notification 

TBD – Ordinance Heading & Public Notice ¼ Page Ad w/Map    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval to transmit a change in Future Land Use to Mixed 

Use Interchange for the property owned by JD and Kathleen L Horne Trust, subject to the information and 

findings in the staff report. 
 
Planning Commission:   A public hearing was duly advertised for a September 12, 2017.  However, impacts 
received to the Apopka area by Hurricane Irma resulted in an inability for several members of the Planning 
Commission to attend, resulting in a lack of a quorum.  To protect the development rights of the applicant and 
property owner, planning staff recommends that City Council proceed with a public hearing on September 20, 
2017 – which has already been properly noticed – to transmit at first reading to the Florida Department of 
Economic Opportunity.  A Planning Commission hearing will be rescheduled for October 10, 2017, and their 
recommendation will be forwarded to State agencies the following day.   State agencies will receive the Planning 
Commission recommendation prior to their mandatory deadline to provide the City with any objections or 
comments.  City Council will receive the Planning Commission recommendation prior to the adoption hearing. 
 

City Council:  Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2590; require a recommendation from the Apopka 

Planning Commission prior to the second City Council hearing; and authorize transmittal to the Florida 

Department of Economic Opportunity. 

 

Note: This item is considered legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

143



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017  

JD AND KATHLEEN L HORNE TRUST– LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

PAGE 5 
 

LAND USE REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) County A-1 and A-2 Horticultural nursery and single family homes 

East (City) Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) A-1 (ZIP) Single-family residential 

South (County) Rural “County” A-1 Horticulture nursery (Peng Nursery) 

West (County) Rural A-1 (ZIP) S.R. 429 Tollway 

 
The property has access from West Kelly Park Road and Plymouth-Sorrento Road. 
 
II. LAND USE ANALYSIS 
 
Analysis for the Future Land Use Designation was performed as part of the adopted Wekiva Parkway 
Interchange Vision Plan.  This Vision Plan has been incorporated into the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Therefore, the proposed Mixed Use Interchange future land use designation is consistent with the general 
future land use character and long-range planning goals of the surrounding area.  
 
 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 
 Area of Critical State Concern: No 
 DRI / FQD: No 
 
 JPA: The City of Apopka and Orange County entered into a Joint Planning Area (JPA) agreement 
on October 26, 2004 and amended the JPA in October 19, 2010 to address the Wekiva Parkway Interchange 
Vision Plan.  The subject property is consistent with the Vision Plan incorporated into Amendment 2 of the 
Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan. 
 
 Transportation:  Road access to the site is from Kelly Park Road to the north and Plymouth-Sorrento 
Road to the east. In addition, the subject propriety abuts S.R. 429 interchange at Kelly Park Road, providing 
limited access highway access to and from the properties. 
 
 Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act: The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the 
adopted Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  The proposed amendment is consistent with the 
adopted mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment has been 
reviewed against the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater resources.  The City of 
Apopka's adopted Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and storm water run-off through the 
following policies: 

 
 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 
 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 
 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 
Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of Environmental 

Protection shows that there are  karst features in the vicinity of this property.   
 
 Analysis of the character of the Property:  The current use of the property is vacant. Analysis of the 
FLUM designation occurred as part of the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan. 
 
 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: Based on the adoption 
of the JPA, the size of the property, and the proposed land use change, the amendment will increase the 

144



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017  

JD AND KATHLEEN L HORNE TRUST– LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

PAGE 6 
 
population by as many as 1,205 people if developed as residential.  The applicant proposes to develop the 
property as commercial retail. Land use analysis was conducted as part of the Wekiva Parkway Interchange 
Vision Plan. 
  
CALCULATIONS: 
ADOPTED: N/A x 2.659 p/h = N/A 
PROPOSED: 453x 2.659 p/h = 1,205 persons  
 
 Housing Needs: This amendment is to change the future land use to a future land use designation 
that permits residential uses, and will increase the number of available housing units in the City of Apopka. 
 
 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: A habitat study is required 
for developments greater than ten (10) acres in size.  At the time the Master Site Plan or Preliminary 
Development Plan is submitted to the City, the development applicant must conduct a species survey and 
submit a habitat management plan if any threatened or endangered species are identified within the project 
site. 
 
 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to 
Chapter 3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 Sanitary Sewer Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None ;  81 GPCD; 81 GPD 

 

 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka 

 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  101,528 GPD 

 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  212,218 GPD 

 

4. Capacity available: Yes 

 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  81 GPD/Capita 

 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  81 GPD/Capita 

 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: 

None 
 

 Potable Water Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None ;  177 GPCD;  

 177 GPD 

 

 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: 

 City of Apopka 

 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:    108,780 GPD 

 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  265,709 GPD 

 

4. Capacity available: Yes 

145



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017  

JD AND KATHLEEN L HORNE TRUST– LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

PAGE 7 
 

 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  177 GPCD 

 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  177 GPCD 

 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 

None 

 

8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area: Yes   
 

 Solid Waste 

 

1. Facilities serving the site:  City of Apopka 

 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: 

City of Apopka 

 

3. Projected LOS under existing designation:  4 lbs./person/day 

 

4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  2 lbs./cap/day 

 

5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 

None 

 

 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 

development approval. 
 

 Infrastructure Information 

 

 Water treatment plant permit number: CUP No. 3217 

 

 Permitting agency: St. John's River Water Management District 

 

 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  21,981 mil. GPD 

 

 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33,696 mil. GPD 

 

 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 

 

 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property: Yes 
 

 Drainage Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site:  

 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation: 100 year - 24 hour design storm event.  

 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 100 year - 24 hour design storm event.  

 

4. Improvement/expansion: On-site retention/detention pond  

146



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017  

JD AND KATHLEEN L HORNE TRUST– LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

PAGE 8 
 

 

 

 

 Recreation 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System; 3 AC/1000 capita 

 

2. Projected facility under existing designation:  4.131 AC 

 

3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  2.679  AC 

 

4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 

amendment: None.     

 

This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 

development approval. 

  

147



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017  

JD AND KATHLEEN L HORNE TRUST– LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

PAGE 9 
 

JD and Kathleen L Horne Trust 
Property Owner 
18.13 +/- Acres 

Proposed Large Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 
From:  No City FLUM assigned 

To: Mixed Use Interchange 
Parcel ID #:  13-20-27-0000-00-008 

 

VICINITY MAP  

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Subject 

Property 

148



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017  

JD AND KATHLEEN L HORNE TRUST– LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

PAGE 10 
 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 
 

 
  

149



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017  

JD AND KATHLEEN L HORNE TRUST– LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

PAGE 11 
 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

150



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017  

JD AND KATHLEEN L HORNE TRUST– LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

PAGE 12 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Kelly Park Crossing Form-Based Code Area 
 

 

151



ORDINANCE NO. 2590 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING 
THE FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION TO MIXED USE - 
INTERCHANGE FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY 
LOCATED EAST OF STATE ROAD 429 AND SOUTH OF WEST KELLY 
PARK ROAD COMPRISING 18.13 ACRES, MORE OR LESS AND 
OWNED BY; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, on October 2, 1991 adopted 

Ordinance No. 653 which adopted the Comprehensive Plan for the City of Apopka; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has subsequently amended the Comprehensive Plan for 

the City of Apopka, most recently through Ordinance No. 2560; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka’s Local Planning Agency and the City Council have 

conducted the prerequisite advertised public hearings, as per Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, 

relative to the transmittal and adoption of this ordinance and the requirements for amendment to 

the Comprehensive Plan.   

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows:  

 

 SECTION I: The City of Apopka hereby amends the Future Land Use Element of the 

adopted Comprehensive Plan as follows:   

 

 The Future Land Use Map is hereby amended for the property identified in Exhibit “A” 

of this Ordinance, and incorporated herein by reference.  

 

 SECTION II: This Ordinance shall become effective following adoption and upon 

issuance by the Department of Economic Opportunity or the Administration Commission, as 

may be applicable, a final order finding the amendment to be in compliance in accordance with 

Chapter 163.3184.  

 

 SECTION III: If any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance 

proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force, or effect of any other section or portion of a section or subsection or part of this 

ordinance.  

 

 SECTION IV:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed. 

 

SECTION V: This Ordinance shall become effective upon issuance of a final order by the 

Florida Department of Economic Opportunity finding the plan amendment in compliance in 

accordance with s.163.3184 (2)(a), Florida Statute. 

152



ORDINANCE NO. 2590 

PAGE 2 

 

 ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, this 

____ day of _____________, 2017. 

 

 

READ FIRST TIME: September 20, 2017 

  

READ SECOND TIME 

AND ADOPTED: 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________________                                                                       

       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                            

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: August 25, 2017 

153



 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

JD And Kathleen L. Horne Trust, Property Owner 
Proposed Large Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 

From: Industrial To: Mixed Use Interchange 
Parcel ID #s:  13-20-27-0000-00-008 

 
Legal Description: 

 

N1/2 OF NE1/4 OF NE1/4 SEC 13-20-27 (LESS RD R/W PER 10756/6799) SEE 6553/5605 

(18.13 +/- acres) 
 

 

 

 
 

 

154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

15. Ordinance No. 2599 – First Reading – Large Scale – Future Land Use Amendment – Sabbath Grace Fellowship – Legislative 
 David Moon 

  

181



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 
 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: September 20, 2017 
X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 
X OTHER:  Ordinances  Vicinity Map 
    Development Boundary Map 
    Adjacent Zoning Map 
    Adjacent Uses Map 
    Existing Uses 

  
SUBJECT:    ORDINANCE NO. 2599 - COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT - 

LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT– SABBATH 

GRACE FELLOWSHIP INC. 

    

REQUEST:  ORDINANCE NO. 2599 - FIRST READING - COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
AMENDMENT - LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT –   
SABBATH GRACE FELLOWSHIP INC,  FROM INDUSTRIAL TO MIXED 
USE; AND AUTHORIZE TRANSMITTAL TO THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT 
OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY. 

  
SUMMARY:  
 
OWNERS:   Sabbath Grace Fellowship, Inc. 
 
APPLICANT:   Royal Oak Homes, Inc.  
 
LOCATION: South of Johns Road, west of S.R. 451 
 
PARCEL ID #:   17-21-28-0000-00-014 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant 
 
DEVELOPMENT  
POTENTIAL:   Single family homes 
 
CURRENT ZONING:  I-1 Industrial 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: Planned Unit Development  
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT  EXISTING: Vacant 
 
    PROPOSED: up to 597 du (up to 15 du/ac)* See Additional Comments below. 
                                                                           Limited to 298 du through a proposed PUD zoning ordinance 

  
TRACT SIZE:   39.85 +/- acres 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

 

182



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
SABBATH GRACE FELLOWSHIP – LARGE SCALE FLUM AMENDMENT 
PAGE 2 

 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:   The applicant proposes to combine the Sabbath Grace Fellowship Parcel with two 
other parcels, one owned by the City of Apopka and the other by James and Deborah Lyda. The proposed development 
boundary map is provided in the exhibits.  Maximum proposed number of single family homes distributed over the 
three properties is 298 dwelling units. 
 
The proposed Large Scale Future Land Use Amendment is being requested by the applicant, who has a contract with 
all three above referenced property owners to purchase the properties if entitlements are obtained (Future Land Use 
and Zoning, etc.).  Pursuant to Florida law, properties ten acres or more are required to undergo review by State 
planning agencies. A request to assign a Future Land Use Designation of Mixed Use is compatible with the 
designations assigned to abutting properties.  The FLUM application covers approximately 39.85 acres.  

 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent with the 
Mixed Use designation and the proposed Planned Unit Development zoning if single family development occurs as 
proposed by the applicant. 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  As residential units for the entire project will not exceed the number of 
residential units that could yield from the City of Apopka and the Lyda properties, no net increase in residential units 
will be achieved over the combined three parcels.  Therefore, school capacity enhancement determination is not 
necessary.  However, school concurrency will be required at the time of the final development plan (i.e., construction 
plans and plat) 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any public 
hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on August 15, 2017. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
September 12, 2017 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) [Quorum was not established; no recommendation] 
September 20, 2017 - City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading & Transmittal 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
August 25, 2017 – Public Notice and Notification 
TBD – ¼ Page w/Map Ordinance Heading Ad  
   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  

 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and 
compatible with the character of the surrounding area, and recommends transmittal of the change in Future Land Use 
from Industrial and Mixed Use for the property owned by Sabbath Faith Fellowship Inc. 
 
Planning Commission:   A public hearing was duly advertised for a September 12, 2017.  However, impacts received 
to the Apopka area by Hurricane Irma resulted in an inability for several members of the Planning Commission to 
attend, resulting in a lack of a quorum.  To protect the development rights of the applicant and property owner, 
planning staff recommends that City Council proceed with a public hearing on September 20, 2017 – which has 
already been properly noticed – to transmit at first reading to the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity.  A 
Planning Commission hearing will be rescheduled for October 10, 2017, and their recommendation will be forwarded 
to State agencies the following day.   State agencies will receive the Planning Commission recommendation prior to 
their mandatory deadline to provide the City with any objections or comments.  City Council will receive the Planning 
Commission recommendation prior to the adoption hearing. 
 
City Council:  Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2599; require a recommendation from the recommendation 

from the Apopka Planning Commission prior to the second hearing; and authorize transmittal to the Florida 

Department of Economic Opportunity. 
 
Note: This item is considered Legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and 
made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

183



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
SABBATH GRACE FELLOWSHIP – LARGE SCALE FLUM AMENDMENT 
PAGE 3 

 
LAND USE REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Mixed Use\Industrial Mixed-EC Horticulture Nursery 

East (City) S.R. 451 Tollway\Industrial I-1 S.R. 451 tollway 

South (City) Commercial C-1 Vacant\wetlands\S.R. 451 stormwater pond 

West (City) Residential Low Density PUD Breckenridge Residential Community\ Single 

Family homes 

 

II. LAND USE ANALYSIS 
 

A change of Future Land Use from Industrial to Mixed Use (Residential0 creates more compatibility with the 

Breckenridge residential community to the west and the Mixed Use assigned to the Lyda property to the north. 

 

Therefore, staff supports the proposed future land use changes. 
 

 Other Information:  
 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 
 Area of Critical State Concern: No 
 DRI / FQD: No 
 
 JPA: The City of Apopka and Orange County entered into a Joint Planning Area (JPA) agreement on October 
26, 2004.  The subject property is located within “North Central” of the JPA.   
 
  Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act:   The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the 
adopted Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  While located within the Wekiva River Basin Study Area, 
the subject property is not located within the Protection Area. The proposed amendment is consistent with the adopted 
mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment has been reviewed against 
the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater resources.  The City of Apopka's adopted 
Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and stormwater run-off through the following policies: 
 

 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 
 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 
 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 
Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of Environmental 

Protection shows that there are no karst features on this property. 
 
 Analysis of the character of the Property:  The property abuts the Breckenridge residential community to the 
west and S.R $51 to the east, and Mixed Use FLU designation to the north. 
  
The proposed amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: The proposed future land use 
designation for the Property is Mixed Use and the zoning Planned Unit Development.  No increase in residential Unit 
will occur based on the combined project boundary encompassing the City of Apopka property, the Lyda property 
and the Sabbath Grace Fellowship property.  Therefore, no additional impacts on school or resident population is 
anticipated over and above that already planned within the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 

184



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
SABBATH GRACE FELLOWSHIP – LARGE SCALE FLUM AMENDMENT 
PAGE 4 

 
CALCULATIONS: 
 

ADOPTED (City designation): 298 single family homes 
PROPOSED (City designation): 298 single family homes  

 
 Housing Needs: This amendment, particularly if developed as a school site, will not negatively impact the 
housing needs as projected in the Comprehensive Plan.   
 
 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: Per policy 4.1 of the Conservation 
Element, a habitat study is required for developments ten (10) acres or more in size.  This site is greater than ten 
acres.  A habitat study will be required at the time of a development plan application. 
 
 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to Chapter 3 of 
the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 Potable Water, Reclaimed Water & Sanitary Sewer Analysis: The subject property is located within the City 
of Apopka service area for potable water, reclaimed water and sanitary service.    

 
 Sanitary Sewer Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None ;   100 GPD/Capita; 
 100 GPD / Capita 

 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka  
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  300 GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  2,550  GPD 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  100 GPD/Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  5.1 GPD/Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: None 
 
 Potable Water Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  City of Apopka ; 100 GPD/Capita; 
 100 GPD/Capita 

 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider:  City of Apopka   
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  300 GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  2,550  GPD 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  100 GPD/Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  5.1 GPD/Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: None 
 

8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area: Yes 
 
 
 

185



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
SABBATH GRACE FELLOWSHIP – LARGE SCALE FLUM AMENDMENT 
PAGE 5 

 
 Solid Waste 
 

1. Facilities serving the site: City of Apopka  
 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: 
City of Apopka 
 

3. Projected LOS under existing designation:  1.8 lbs./person/day 
 

4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  4.5 lbs./day/1000 sf 
 

5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: None 
 
 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of development 
approval. 
 

Infrastructure Information 
 
 Water treatment plant permit number: CUP No. 3217 
 
 Permitting agency: St. John's River Water Management District 
 
 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  9.353 MGD 
 
 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33.696 MGD 
 
 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 
 
 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property:  Yes 
 
 Drainage Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site: None 
 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation:  25 year - 96 hour design storm  
 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 25 year - 96 hour design storm  
 

4. Improvement/expansion: On-site retention/detention pond  
 
 Recreation - Not applicable. 
 
This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of development 
approval. 

  

186



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
SABBATH GRACE FELLOWSHIP – LARGE SCALE FLUM AMENDMENT 
PAGE 6 

 

 

 
Proposed Development Project Boundary 

(max. 298 single family homes within the development boundary) 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

187



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
SABBATH GRACE FELLOWSHIP – LARGE SCALE FLUM AMENDMENT 
PAGE 7 

 
 
 

Sabbath Grace Fellowship Inc. 

Proposed Large Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 

From: Industrial 

To: Mixed Use 

Proposed Change of Zoning: 

From: I - 1 Industrial 

To: Planned Unit Development (single family residential) 

Parcel ID #s:  17-21-28-0000-00-014 

 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 

188



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
SABBATH GRACE FELLOWSHIP – LARGE SCALE FLUM AMENDMENT 
PAGE 8 

 

Existing and Adjacent Uses 

 

189



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
SABBATH GRACE FELLOWSHIP – LARGE SCALE FLUM AMENDMENT 
PAGE 9 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING MAP (1) 

 

 

 
 

190



CITY COUNCIL – SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 
SABBATH GRACE FELLOWSHIP – LARGE SCALE FLUM AMENDMENT 
PAGE 10 

 

 

 

ADJACNET ZONING MAP (2) 

 

 
 

 
 

191



ORDINANCE NO. 2599 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 

THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING 

THE FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM INDUSTRIAL TO 

MIXED USE FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED 

WEST OF STATE ROAD 451 AND SOUTH OF JOHNS ROAD, 

COMPRISING 39.85 ACRES, MORE OR LESS AND OWNED BY 

SABBATH FAITH FELLOWSHIP INCORPORATED; PROVIDING FOR 

SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE 
  

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, on October 2, 1991 adopted 

Ordinance No. 653 which adopted the Comprehensive Plan for the City of Apopka; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has subsequently amended the Comprehensive Plan for 

the City of Apopka, most recently through Ordinance No. 2560; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka’s Local Planning Agency and the City Council have 

conducted the prerequisite advertised public hearings, as per Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, 

relative to the transmittal and adoption of this ordinance and the requirements for amendment to 

the Comprehensive Plan.   

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows:  

 

 SECTION I: The City of Apopka hereby amends the Future Land Use Element of the 

adopted Comprehensive Plan as follows:   

 

 The Future Land Use Map is hereby amended for the property identified in Exhibit “A” 

of this Ordinance, and incorporated herein by reference.  

 

 SECTION II: This Ordinance shall become effective following adoption and upon 

issuance by the Department of Economic Opportunity or the Administration Commission, as 

may be applicable, a final order finding the amendment to be in compliance in accordance with 

Chapter 163.3184.  

 

 SECTION III: If any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance 

proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force, or effect of any other section or portion of a section or subsection or part of this 

ordinance.  

 

 SECTION IV:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed. 

 

 

192



ORDINANCE NO. 2599 

PAGE 2 

 

 

SECTION V: This Ordinance shall become effective upon issuance of a final order by the 

Florida Department of Economic Opportunity finding the plan amendment in compliance in 

accordance with s.163.3184 (2)(a), Florida Statute. 

 

 ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, this 

____ day of _____________, 2017. 

 

 

READ FIRST TIME: September 20, 2017 

  

READ SECOND TIME 

AND ADOPTED: 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________________                                                                       

       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                            

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: August 25, 2017 

193



 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Sabbath Grace Fellowship Incorporated, Property Owner 
Proposed Large Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 

From: Industrial To: Mixed Use 
Parcel ID #s:  17-21-28-0000-00-014 

 
Legal Description: 

 

E1/2 OF NE1/4 LYING W OF EXPY IN SEC 17-21-28 (LESS PT TAKEN FOR R/W 

PER OR 5487/1547 CI98-2788) & IN SEC 08-21-28 THAT PART OF E1/2 OF 

SE1/4 OF SE1/4 LYING S OF CLAY RD & W OF EXPRESSWAY SEE 3147/1855 & 

1856 3703/1683 

 

 
 

 

194



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

16. Resolution No. 2017-18 - Granting a roll-off container collection franchise agreement to Russo and Sons, LLC.  Jay 
Davoll 

  

195



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  
 

       CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: September 20, 2017 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Public Services 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       Resolution 2017-18 

  X  OTHER:  RESOLUTION  

  
 

SUBJECT: GRANTING A NON-EXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE FOR ROLL-OFF CONTAINER 

COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL OF SOLID WASTE IN THE CITY OF APOPKA 

TO RUSSO AND SONS, LLC. 

 

Request: ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2017-18 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

Chapter 66, Article III, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Apopka, provides for private refuse 

collection service through the granting of a non-exclusive franchise for roll-off container collection in the 

City.  The minimum amount the City is to receive is $960 per year for this agreement. 

 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

N/A 

    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Adopt Resolution No. 2017-18. 

 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

 

196



RESOLUTION NO. 2017-18 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

APOPKA, FLORIDA, GRANTING A NON-EXCLUSIVE 

FRANCHISE TO RUSSO AND SONS, LLC, TO PROVIDE 

"ROLL-OFF" CONTAINER COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL 

OF WASTE IN THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, 

PURSUANT TO CITY OF APOPKA, CODE OF ORDINANCES, 

CHAPTER 66, ARTICLE III; PROVIDING FOR THE TERM 

OF YEARS FOR THE FRANCHISE; PROVIDING FOR 

FRANCHISE FEE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 

WHEREAS, Chapter 66, Article III, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, provides for private refuse collection service through the granting of non-exclusive 

franchise(s) for roll-off containers, and is hereinafter referred to as Chapter 66, Article III; and 

  

WHEREAS, Chapter 66, Article III grants the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, the power, right and authority to contract by resolution with persons thereby granting 

non-exclusive franchise(s) to provide "roll-off" container collection and disposal of waste within 

the City of Apopka, Florida; and 

 

WHEREAS, Chapter 66, Article III provides for City requirements, outlining Franchisee's 

duties, providing the terms and conditions under which such franchise shall operate. 

 

WHEREAS, Chapter 66, Article III enables the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, to enter into a contract with persons desiring a franchise to provide roll-off container 

collection and disposal of waste within the City of Apopka; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, that: 

 

SECTION I.  GRANT AND TERM. 
 

That the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, extends a non-exclusive franchise to: 

 

Russo and Sons, LLC 

 

a Florida corporation whose business address is:  

 

450 Enterprise St.   

Ocoee, FL. 34761 

 

Hereinafter referred to as Grantee, to provide roll-off container collection and disposal of waste 

within the corporate limits of the City of Apopka, Florida, under the terms set out in Chapter 66, 

Article III. 

 

The term of this franchise will begin on September 20, 2017 and end on September 19, 2020 (The 

term may be extended for an additional two (2) years, at the sole option of the City, by written 

notice to the franchisee not less than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of the current term.) 
197



 

SECTION II.  COMPLIANCE WITH ORDINANCE AND RESOLUTION.  
 

That the City of Apopka, Florida, and the Grantee of the franchise shall comply with all of 

the terms and conditions as set forth in Chapter 66, Article III, and this Resolution. A failure by the 

Grantee to comply with the terms and conditions of Chapter 66, Article III and/or all ordinances 

and resolutions of the City of Apopka, and/or the laws of the State of Florida or the United States, 

shall be grounds for the immediate revocation of the Franchise. 

 

Payment of Franchise Fees shall be made payable to the City of Apopka, and mailed to  

 

City of Apopka, 

Attention: Accounts Payable, 

120 E Main St 

Apopka, Florida, 32703. 

 

The fee for administrative and inspection costs and expenses shall be credited against the 

charges. 

 

SECTION III.  ENFORCEMENT.  

 

The Mayor or his designee is hereby authorized to enforce the non-exclusive franchise 

granted by this Resolution for the City of Apopka. 

 

SECTION IV.  EFFECTIVE DATE  
 

This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption, and the non-exclusive 

franchise granted by this Resolution shall be binding immediately on the City and the Grantee 

upon the date those proper officers or authorities of each have duly executed this Resolution. 

 

 

APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, and this 20th day of 

September 2017. 

 

CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 

 

 

ATTEST: 

                                                     

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

 

 

                                     

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 
198



ACCEPTANCE BY FRANCHISEE 
 

 

 

The foregoing RESOLUTION NO. 2017-18 and the NON-EXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE 

provided for therein, and all the terms and conditions thereof, are hereby accepted, approved, and 

agreed to this _______day of September, 2017 

 

 

 

RUSSO AND SONS, LLC 

 

______________________________________ 

Signature 

 

______________________________________ 

Printed Name 

 

______________________________________ 

Title 

 

 

STATE OF FLORIDA 

COUNTY OF ORANGE 

 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this _____ day of September 2017, by 

____________________________. 

 

 

_______________________________  

      Notary Public, State of Florida 

 

_______________________________ 

Printed Name of Notary 

 

Personally Known ______ OR Produced Identification _______ 

 

Type of Identification Produced ______________________________ 

 

199



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Appreciation letter from Florida Hospital to the Fire & Police Departments.   
  

200



201



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. Appreciation email from an Apopka resident for the Public Services, Waste Management Division.   
  

202



From: Mitchell Andrews [mailto:jlagator50@aol.com]  
Sent: Tuesday, September 12, 2017 8:21 AM 
To: Merry Lovern 
Subject: Great job!! 

 
Merry:  
 
Please tell the Mayor what a wonderful job the Waste Management folks have done to help clean up after 
Irma.  It is truly appreciated. 
 
Regards, 
 
Mitch 

Mitchell Andrews 
Proud of my beautiful wife and two awesome daughters!! 

 

203


	Top
	1. 09-20-17 - CC - Presentations - Red Ribbon Week Proclamation
	1. 09-20-17 - CC - Consent Agenda - CD - Marshall Lake Extension
	Marshall Lake bid extension request staff report CC9-20-17.docx
	Project sample map-Exhibit.pdf

	1. 09-20-17 - CC - Business - Public Services - Northwest Recreation Center Irrigation Pump Purchase
	Northwest Center Irrigation Pump Purchase Staff Report.docx

	1. 09-20-17 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2565 - 2nd Rd - Large Scale FLUM - Amerigo Farms - Legislative
	1 Amerigo Farms - FLUM - CC 09 20 17 2nd Reading.pdf
	2 Ord 2565 Amerigo Farms Inc FLUM.pdf

	2. 09-20-17 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2585 - 2nd Rd - 2017-2 Admin Rezoning - Case No. 2017-2-1 - Chandler - Quasi-Judicial
	1 2017-2-1- Richard Chandler CC 09 20 17.pdf
	2 Ord 2585  - CHANDLER  ZON.pdf

	3. 09-20-17 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2586 - 2nd Rd - 2017-2 Admin Rezoning - Case No. 2017-2-2 - Sanders - Quasi-Judicial
	1 2017-2-2- Sanders CC 09 20 17.pdf
	2 Ord 2586  - SANDERS  ZON.pdf

	4. 09-20-17 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2587 - 2nd Rd - 2017-2 Admin Rezoning - Case No. 2017-2-3 - Jolly - Quasi-Judicial
	1 2017-2-3- Jolly  CC 09 20 17.pdf
	2 Ord 2587  - JOLLY  ZON.pdf

	5. 09-20-17 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2588 - 2nd Rd - 2017-2 Admin Rezoning - Case No. 2017-2-4 - Edgell LLC - Quasi-Jucidial
	1 2017-2-4- Edgel LLC - CC  09-20-17.pdf
	2 Ord 2588  - EDGEL  ZON.pdf

	6. 09-20-17 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2589 - 2nd Rd - 2017-2 Admin Rezoning - Case No. 2017-2-5 - Halm - Quasi-Judicial
	1 2017-2-5- Halm CC  09-20-17.pdf
	2 Ord 2589  - HALM ZON.pdf

	7. 09-20-17 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2592 - 2nd Rd - Change of Zoning - Gates - Quasi-Judicial
	1 Gates&amp; Oak Royal ZON - CC 09-20-17.pdf
	2 Ord 2592- Gates Oak Royal ZON.pdf

	8. 09-20-17 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2593 - 2nd Rd - Annexation - 425 &amp; 431 W Station St - Legislative
	1 Looms Funeral Home, Inc Annexation Staff Report 2nd Rd.pdf
	2 2017 Annexation Cycle 3-.pdf
	3 Ord 2593 - Loomis Funeral Home, Inc.pdf

	9. 09-20-17 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2594 - 2nd Rd - Annexation - 251 W Lester Rd - Legislative
	1 Curtis and Karen Pumphrey Annexation Staff Report 2nd Rd.pdf
	2 2017 Annexation Cycle 3-.pdf
	3 Ord 2594 - Curtis and Karen Pumphrey.pdf

	10. 09-20-17 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2595 - 2nd Rd - Annexation - 213 W Lester Rd &amp; 2122 Rock Springs Rd - Legislative
	1 AD Raulerson and AD Raulerson Jr Staff Report 2nd Rd.pdf
	2 2017 Annexation Cycle 3-.pdf
	3 Ord 2595- AD Raulerson and AD Raulerson, Jr.pdf

	11. 09-20-17 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2596 - 2nd Rd - Annexation - 3001 W Kelly Park Rd - Legislative
	1 Tysko Annexation Staff Report 2nd Rd.pdf
	2 2017 Annexation Cycle 3- Spreadsheet.pdf
	3 Ord 2596- Tyszko.pdf

	12. 09-20-17 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2597 - 2nd Rd - Annexation - 3013 W Kelly Park Rd - Legislative
	1 McKernan Annexation Staff Report 2nd Rd.pdf
	2 2017 Annexation Cycle 3- Spreadsheet.pdf
	3 Ord 2597- McKernan.pdf

	13. 09-20-17 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2598 - 2nd Rd - Annexation - 5012 Plymouth Sorrento Rd - Legislative
	1 Gillis Griffin Maerz Annexation Staff Report 2nd Rd.pdf
	2 2017 Annexation Cycle 3-.pdf
	3 Ord 2598- Gillis Griffin Maerz.pdf

	14. 09-20-17 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2590 - 1st Rd - Large Scale FLUM - Horne 
	1 Horne - FLUM - CC  09 20 17.pdf
	2 Ord 2590 - Horne  FLUM.pdf
	3 Wekiva Parkway Interchange Plan Character Districts.pdf
	4 Future Land Use Element_Policy 18.pdf
	5 JPA 2nd Amend_Signed.pdf

	15. 09-20-17 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2599 - 1st Rd - Large Scale FLUM - Sabbath Grace - Legislative
	1 Sabbath Grace Fellowship -  FLU - CC 9-20-17.pdf
	2 Ord 2599 - Sabbath Grace Fellowship FLUM.pdf

	16. 09-20-17 - CC - Resolutions - Resolution #2017-18 - Russo and Sons LLC Roll-Off Franchise Agreement
	Resolution 2017-18 Staff Report.pdf
	Rolloff Russo and Sons LLC Reso 2017-18.docx

	1. 09-20-17 - CC - Items Not Requiring Action - Florida Hospital Email of Appreciation
	2017-09-18 Tim Cook Florida Hospital Apopka Appreciation Letter for Fire and Police Chiefs.pdf

	2. 09-20-17 - CC - Items Not Requiring Action - Waste Management Email of Appreciation
	PS - Waste Management Appreciation Email - Items Not Requiring Action.pdf

	Bottom

